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4 The TryaL of Mary Blandy, Spinfler.

taken with the utmofl Deliberation ; carried on with an unvaried Continuation of Inten-
tion 3 and ac lait accomplifhed by a frequent Repetition of the baneful Dofe, adminiftred
with her own Hands. A Crime fo [hocking in its own Nature, and fo aggravated in
all its Circumftances, as will (if ifhe is proved 1o be guilty of it} jultly render her infamous
to the lateft Poiterity ; and make our Children’s Children, when they wead the horrid Tale
of this Day, blufh to think that fuch an inhuman Creature ever had an Exiltence.

I need not, Gentlemen, paint to you the Heinoulnefs of the Crime of Murder. You
have but to confult your own Breafts, and you will know it, ;

Has a Murder been committed # Who ever beheld the ghaltly Corple of the murdered
Innecent weltering in its Bload, and did not feel his own Blood run flow and cold chrou
all his Veins?  Hasthe Murderer efcaped ? With what Eagerels do we purfue ? With
what Zeal do we apprehend? With what Joy do we bring to Juftice? And when the
dreadful Sentence of Death is pronounced upon him, every Body. bears it with Satisfac-
tion, and acknowledges the Jultice of che divine Denunciation, chat, By whom Man’s Bleed
is fbed, by Man fball bis Blood be fhed.

If this then is the Cale of every common Murderer ; what will be thought of one,
who has murdered her own Father 7 Who has defignedly done the greatelt of all human
Injuries to him, from whom fhe reccived the firlt and greatelt. of all human Benefits2
W ho has wickedly taken away his Life, to whom fhe ftands indebted for Life ? Who has
deliberately deftroyed, in his old Age, him, by whofe Care and Tendernefs the was pro-
tefted in her helplefs Infancy ! Who has impioully (hut her Ears againft the loud Voice
of Natsre and of God, which bid her honour her Father, and inftead of henouring him
has murdered him ? 1 51 e

It becomes us, Gentlemen, Who appear here as Council for the Crown, fhortly to open
the Hiftory of this whole Affair 5 that you may be better able to attend to and underftand
the Evidence we have to lay before you.  And though, in doing this, I will endeavour
rather 1o extenuate than to aggravate : Yer I truft 1 have fuch an Hiftory to open as will
fhock the Ears of all who hear me. : | -

Mr. Franeis Blandy, the unfortunate Decealed, was an Attorney at Law, who lived at
Hiffey in.this County. A Man of Character and Reputation ; he had one only Child,
—a Daughter,—the Darling of his Soul, the Comfort of his Age. He took the utmoft
Cire of her Education, and had the Satisfaltion to fee his Care was not ill-beftowed ; for fhe
was genteel, agreeable, fprightly, fenfible. His whole Thoughts were bent, to fettle her
advantagerully in the World. ~In order to do that, he made ufe of a pious Fraud, (if
1 miay beallowed the Expreflion,) pretending he could give her 10,000/ for her Fartune,
This he did in hopes that fome of the neighbouring Gentlemen would pay their Ad-
drefles to her : For out of Regard to him, fhe was from her earlielt Youth received into
the beft cgmpcm‘ ; and her own Behaviour made her afterwards acceptable to them. Bue
how thort-fighted is human Prudence! What was intended for her Promotion proved his
Deith and hér Deftrudtion, _ :

For Gentlemen, About fix Years ago, one Captain William Henry Cranfionn, a Gentle-
man then in the Army, happened to come to Henley to recruit. He foon got acquainted
with the Prifoner, and hearing fhe was to have 10,000/, fell in love,—not with her, bug
with her Fortune, Children he had before ; married he was at that Time, yet conceal-
}ng it from her, he infinuated himfelf into her good Graces, and obtained her Confent
or Marriage.

The Father, who had heard a bad Charater of him, and who had Reafon to believe
what was afterwards conBrmed, that he was at that very Time married, you will eafily
imagine was averfe to the Propofal.  Upon this Captain Cramfoun and the Prifoner deter-
mined to remove that Obftacle out of their Way, and refolved to get as foon as poffible
into Poffefiion of the 10,000l that the peor Man had unfortunately faid he was warth.

In order for this, the Captain being at Mr. Blandy’s Houle in Auguff 1750, they both
agreed upon this horrid Deed. And that People might be lefs I’urFrifm’r at Mr. Blandy's Ehn:h,
they began by giving out that they heard Mufic in the Houfe.—A certain Sign (as Mr.
Cranfioun had learned from a wife Woman, one Mrs. Morgan, in Scotland) that the Fa-
ther would die in lefs than twelve Months.—The Captain too pretended he was indowed
with the Gift of fecond Sight, and affirmed that he had feen Mr. Blandy’s Apparition.
This was another certain Sign of his Death, as fhe told the Servants; to whom fhe fre-
quently faid her Father would not live long. Nay, fhe went farther, and told them he
would not live till the Ofober following.

- When it was fhe firft began to mix Poifon with his Victuals, it is impofiible for us
to afcertain ; hur.égrnhahly it was not long after Nevember 1750, when Mr. Granfloun left
Henley,  The Effedts of the Poifon were foon perceived.  You will hear Dr. Adddimgron his
Phyfician tell you, Mr. Blendy had for many Months felt the dreadiul Eficéts of it Ga;cf
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6 The TryAL of Mary Blandy, Spinfler,

Pantry, and after flirring ber Papa’s Water-gruel, bad eat the Oalmeal at the Bottem, fay-
ing, that, if fbe was ever fo take fo the cating any thing in particular it would be Oay-
meal. Strange Inconfiltence! She who had caution’d the Maid againit it not above a
Fortnight before, who had declared that ic had been prejudicial to her own Health, * is on
“ a fudden grown mighey fond of " But the Pretence is eafily to be feen through,
That Afternoon fome of the Water-gruel was taken out of the Pan, and prepared for
her Father's Supper. She again in the Kitchen takes care to ftir it fufficiently ; Looks
at the Spoon. Rubs fome between her Fingers. And then fends it up to the poorold
Blan, her Father.  He fcarce hagl fwallow®d i1t, when he was taken violently ill, and con-
tinued fo all the next Day, with a griping, Purging, and vomiting. Yet fhe herfelf
orders a fecond Mefs, of the fame Gruel, for her Father’s Supper on the Tuefday,
and was herfelf the Perfon who carry’d it up to her Father, and adminifter’d ic
to him as Nourilhment. The Poor old Man, grown weak with the frequent Repetition,
had not drank half the Mefs before he was feiz'd, from Head to Foor, with the moft vio-
lent pricking Pains, continual reaching and vomiting ;——and was obliged to go to
Bed without finithing it. The next Morning the poor Chairwoman coming again to the
Houfe, unfortunately eat the Remainder of the Gruel ; and was inftandy afefted in fo
violent a manner, that for two Hours together it was thought fhe would have died
in Mr. Blandy's Houfe. The Prifoner at this Time was in Bed, but the Maid going up
to her Room told her how ill Damwe Emmet had been, at the fame time faying fhe had eat
nothing but the Remainder of her Father's Water-gruel.  The Prifoner’s Anfwer was,
Poor Woman! [ am glad I was not up, I fould bave been fbock’d 1o bave jeen ber,  Should
have been thock®d to have feen the poor Chairwoman eat what was prepar’d for her Fa-
ther; but was never fhock’d at her Father's eating it, or at his Sufferings!

Gentlemen, in the Afternoon of the Hednefdzy, notwithitanding the poor Man, her Fa-
ther, had fuffer’d fo much fortwo D‘lﬁtﬂgﬂhﬂ. yet fhe again endeavours to give him more
of the fame Gruel, No! fays the Maid, it bas an odd Tafle ; it is grown flale; I woill
make frefh, At is mot worth while to make frofb new, it will take you from your Iroming 3
this will do, was the Prifoner’s Anfwer.  However Safar made frefh, after which wanting
the Pan to put itin, fhe went to throw away what was before in it. Upon tilting the
Pan, fhe perceived a white Powder at the Bottom,. which fhe knew could not be Oat-
meal.  She fhew'd it her Fellow-Servant, when feeling it they found it grity. They
then too plainly perceiv’d what it was had made their poor old Mafter fo ill.  What was
to be done ? Swfw immediately carried the Pan, with the Groel and Powder in i, to Mrs.
Mounteney, a Neighbour and Friend of the decealed. Mrs. Meunsency kepe it nll it was
deliver’d to the Apothecary, the Apothecary deliver’d it to the Phyfician, and he will tell
you, that upon trying it, he found it to be white Arfenic. Mr. Blendy continued from
Day w Day to grow werle. At lalt, upon the Saturday Moming, Sufan Guanelf, an old
honeft Maid Servant, uneafy to fee how her poor Malter had been treated, went 1o his.
Bed-fide, and, in the moft prudent and gentlelt manner, broke to him what had been the
Caufe of his Ilinefs, and the Rtrong Ground there was to fufpect that his Daughter was
the Occalion of it. The Father, with a Fondnefs greater than ever a Father felt before,
cried out, Poor lovefick Girl! What will not & Woman do for the Man fbe loves! Bus.
swho de you think gave ber the Pewder P She anfwer®d, She conld net rell, wnlefs it was fent.
&y Mr. Cranlloun. [ kelieve fo tos, fays the Malker, for I remember be bas talked learned-.
iy of Poifons, I always theught there was Mijebief in thefé curfed Scorch Pebbles.

Soon afterwards he got up and came to Breakfalt in his J’arlour, where his Daughter
and Mr. Littleton, his Clerk, then were. A dith of Tea, in the ufual Manner, was ready
pour'd out forhim. He jult ralted iv, and faid, This Tea bas a bad Tajle ; looked at the
Cups then locked hard at his Daughter. She was, for the firlt Time, fhock'd s burik
into T'ears, and ran outof the Room. The poor Father, more fhock'd than the Daugh-
ter, poured the Tea into the Cat's Bafon, and went to the Window torecover himfelf. = She.
{oon came again into the Room. Mr. Littleton faid, Madane! I fear your Fatber is i,
Jor be bas flung away bis Tea. Upon this News fhe trembled, and the Tears again tood
in her Eyes, She again withdrew, Soon afterwards the Father came into the Kitchen,
and addreffing himfelf to her faid, Molly! I boa like te bave been poifen’d tweniy Jears age,
and wow I find I fball die &y Poifon at laff. This was Warning fufficient.  She immediate-
ly went up Stairs, brought down Mr. Cranffoun's Letters, together with the Remainder
of the Poifon, and threw them (as e thought unoblerv’d) into the Fire.. Thinking fhe,
had pow clear’d herfelf from the fulpicious Appearances of Poifon, her Spints mend,
b ibank’d God, that fbe was mauch becter, and faid, ber Mind was more at eafe than it bad
Been.  Alas! how often does char, which we fondly  imagine will fave us, become our
Deftrution? So it was in the prefent Inftance. For providentially, though the Letters
were deflroy’d, the Paper with the Poilon in ic was not burnt, One of the Maids having

3 ime-







8 The TrYAL of Mary Blandy, Spinfler,

endeavour’d to perfuade the Man Servant to go off with her ; but he was too honeft to be
tempted by a Reward to aflift her in going off, tho’ fhe told him it would be 500/, in his
way. That Night the refufed to go to Bed. Not out of Grief for her Father’s Death 3
for you will be told by the Maid, who fat up with her, that fhe never, during the
whole Night, fhewed the lealt Sorrow, Compaffion, or Remorfe upon his Account.
But in the Middle of the Night the propofed to get a Pull‘-Chai;l'F in order to go to Lex-.
don, and ofiered the Maid twenty-five Guineas to go with her. A Poff-Chaife! ond ga
fe London! God forbid, Madam! I fbowld do fuch a Thing. The Prifoner finding the
Maid not proper for her Purpofe, immediately put a Smile upon her Face, * I was
« only joking.”" Only joking! good God ! would fhe now have it thought fhe was only
joking ?

: ng Father jult dead by Poifon: She fulpefted of having poifon’d him ; accus’d of
being a Parricide; and would fhe have it thought the was capable of joking?

When I fee the Afiftance fhe now has, (and Iam glad to jee fhe has the Afiftance of
three as able Gentlemen, as any in the Profeffion) I am fure fhe will not be now advifed
to fay fhe was then joking, Buc it will appear very plainly to you, Gentlemen, thar fhe
was not joking 3 for the next Morning [he dreffed herfelf in a proper Habit for a Journey,.
and, while the People put to take care of her, were ablent, ftole out of the Houfe, and
went over Henley-Eridge.  But the Mob, who had heard of what he had done, follow’d
her fo clofe, thatfhe was forced to take fhelter in a little Alehoufe, the ngel. Mr, Fifher
a Gentleman, who was afterwards one of the Jury upon the Coroner’s Inquifition ; came
there and prevailed with her (or in other Words forced her) to return home.  Upon her
Return, the Inqueft fitting, fhe fends for Mr. Fifber into another Room, and faid, Dear
Mr. Fither ! what do you think they will do withme ? Will they fend me fo Oxford Gaol 2.
Madam ! {aid he, I am afraid it will go bard with yos. Bur if you bave any of M.
Cranftoun’s Letiers, and produce them, they may be of fome Service to you. Upon hear-
ing this, fhe cried out, Dear Mr. Fither ! whbat bave [dome! [bad Lesters that wonld
hove barged that Villain, but Ibave burnt them. My Honour to that Villain bas broughe
me to my DeftruiFion. And [he fpoke the Truth. e

This, Gentlemen, is, in Subflance, the Hiltory of this black Affair. But, My Lords |
though this is the Hiltory in Order of Time 5 yet it is not the Order in which we fhall lay
the Evidence before your Lordihips and the Jury. It will be proper for us to begin by,
eftablithing the Fat, that M. Francis Blandy did die Ef Pﬁlp * When the Phyficians
have proved thar, we will then proceed to fhew that ke died of rhe Poijfon put into the.
Water-gruel en the 50b of Augult.  After this we will call Witneifes, who from 2 Number
of Circumilances, as well as from her own Confeffion, will prove ;ﬂ' it into ber Fas
ther’s Water-gruel, knowing it was for ber Fatber, and kncwing it te be Poifon. _

Having done this, we will conclude with a Piece of Evidence which I forgot to men-
tion before, and that is the Converfation between her and Mr. Lane at the angel.  Mr.
Lane and his Wife happening to be walking at that time, findinga Mob about the Door,.
ftepd ifito the Alehoule to fee the Priloner. The Moment fhe faw a Gentleman, theugh
it was ane fhe did not know, fhe accofted him, *¢ Sir! you appear to be a Gentleman 5 gp
¢ Heaven's fake ; whae will become of me?” Madam | (aid he, you will be fent to Oxford
Gasl, you will there be tricd for your lifey if yow are iwngienty you will be acquitted 3 if
you are pailty, you will fuffer Dearb, ' . -

' The Prifoncr upon hearing this, ftamped with her Foot, and faid, Ob! sbat demn’d.
Fillain ! then pauling, But why do I blame bim 2 I am mo? to blame myfelf, for I gave ity
and [ kuew the Confequence. If fhe knew the Confequence, I am fure there are none of
of you, Gentlemen, but who will think fhe deferves to {uffer the Confequence,

; .g.nd let me here obferve, how cvidcngy the Hand of Providence has interpoled to bring
her to this Day's Tryal that fhe may fuffer the Confequence. For whar, but the Hand
of Providence, could have preferved the Paper thrown, by her, into the Fire, and have
fnatch’d it unbornt from the devouring Flame? , Good God! how wonderful are all.
thy Ways ! and how miraculoufly haft thou preferved this Paper, to be this Day pro-:
duced in Evidence againit the Prifoner, in order that fhe may fuffer the Punithment due.
to her Crime ; and be a dreadful Example to all others, who may be] tempted in like
manner to offend thy Divine Majefty ! Eon

Let me add, that next to Providence the Public are obliged to the two noble Lords,
whole indefatigable Diligence in inquiring into this hidden Work of Darknefs has enabled -
us to lay bLefore you upon this Occafion, the cleareft and firongeft Proof that fuch a
dark Tranfattion will admir of. For Poifoning is done in fecree and alone ; it is not like
other Murders, neither ean it be proved with equal Perlpicuity. However, the Evi-.
dence we liave'in this Cafe is as clear and diret as pofiible; and if it comes up to what
I have opened to you, 1 make no doubt but you will do that Juftice to your Country,
which the Oath you have taken requires of you. A
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M. Serjeant Haymard,

ﬁ it pleafe your Lordfhips, and you Gentlemen of the Jury 5 T likewife am appointed
to affift che Crown on this Occalion ; but his Majefty's learned Council having laid before
you [0 faithful a Narrative of this difmal Tranfation; it feems almolt unneceffary for me
to take up any more of your Time, in repeating any Thing that has been before faid ; and
indeed my own Inclinanons would lead me to calt a Veil over the guilty Scene: A Scene,
fo black, and fo horrid, that if mﬂr Duty did not call me toir, 1 could rather wilh it
might be for ever concealed from human Eyes. But as we are now making Inquifition
for Blood, it is abfolutely neceffary for me to make fome Obfervations upon that Chain of
Circumftances, that attended this bloody Contrivance and detefted Murder.
: ience has taughe us, that in many Cafes, a [lingle Fat may be fupported by falle
Teftimony, but where it is attended with a Train of Circumitances that cannot be invented,
acl they never happened) fuch a Fat will always be made out to the Satisfaftion of a
» by the concurting Affiitance of circumitantial Evidence. Becaufe Circumitances
that tally one with anocher are above human Contrivance.  And efpecially, fuch as naru-
rally arifein their order, from the hirlt Contrivance of a Scheme to the fatal Execution of ir.

Having fuggefted thus much, I fhall now preceed to lay before you thofe fore of Circum-
ftances that frem to me to arife through this whole Affair, and leave it to your Judg-
ment, whether they do not amount to. oo convincing a Proof that the Prifoner at the
Bar has knowingly been the Caule of her own Father's Death § for upon the Prifoner’s
Knowledge of what the did, will depend her Fate.

Of all kinds of Murders, that by Poifon is the moft dreadful, as it takes a Man un-

ruarded and gives him no Opportuty to defend himfelfs much more fo when adminiftred
the Hand of a Child, whom one could leaft fufpect, and from whom one might natu-
rally look for Affiftance and Comfort. Could a Father entertain any Sufpicion of a Child,
to whom under God he had been the fecond Caufe of Life? No fure, and yet this is the
Cale now before you, The unfortunare Deceafed has received his Death by Poilon, and
that undoubtedly adminiftred by the Hand. of his own,—his only,—his beloved Child.
me Gentlemen, to pay the Tribute of one Tear to the Memory of a Perfon, with
whom I was molt intimately acquainted, and to the Excellency of whofe Difpoirivn and
Integrity of Heart, I can fafely bear faithful Teltimony ; O! were he now liviag, and to
fee his Daughter there, the fevereft Tortures that Poifon could give, would be nothing
o' what he would fuffer from fuch a Sight.

And fince the bitterelt Agonics mull 4t this Time furround the Heart of the Prifoner,
if fhe does but think of what a Father fhe has loft; Ican readily join with her in heg
feverelt AfMictions upon this Occafion, and fhall never blame myfelf, for weeping
with thofe that weep; nor can 1 make the lealt Queftion, but my learned Affiftants
in this Profecution will with me rejoice likewife, if the Prifoner by making her Innocence
appear, fhall upon the Caonclufion of this Inquiry find Occafion to rejoice. But las! too
firong I fear will the Charge againft her be proved, too convincing are the Circumflances
that attend it: What thofe are, and what may be collefted from them is my nexe Bufinels
to offer to your Conlideration.

But before I enter thercupon, I muft beg leave to addrefs myfelf to this numerous and
. erowded Affembly, whom Curiofity hath led hither to hear the Event of this folemn Tryal s
hoping that whatever may be the Confequence of it to the Prifoner, her prefent melan=
choly Situation may trn to our Advantage, and reduce our Minds to Serioufnefs and At~
tention.  Solemn indeed I may well call it, as being a Tribunal truly awlful: For this Me-
thod of Tryal, before two of his Majelty’s learned fudges, has fcarce ever been known up-
on a Circuit ; Judges of undoubted Virtue, Integrity, and Learning, who undergo this
laborious and important Work, not only for the fake of bringing Guile to Punifhment,
but to "Fmd proteét Innocence whenever it appears,

Bur You, young Gentlemen ; of this Univerlity, 1 particularly beg your Attention, ear-
neftly befeeching you' to guard againft the firft Approaches of and Temptations to Vice.
See here the dreadful Confequence of Difobedienceto a Parent. Who could have thought thac
Mifs Blandy, a young Lady virtuoully brought up, diftinguithed for her good Behaviour
and prudent Conduét in Life, till her unfortunate Acquaintance with the wicked Cranfosn,
fhould ever be brought to a T'ryal for her Life; and that for the moft degpente and bloodielt
kind of Murder, commitied by ber mHmd,rTn ber ewn Fatber P Had fhe liftened
to his Admeonitions, this Calamity never had befallen her. Leamn hence the dreadful Con-
fequences of Difobedience to Parents : and know alfo, that the {ame Mifchief in all Pro-
bability may happen to fuch who nbﬂinml'gdifr:gud, negleét, and delpife Lh;.&dvi:
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of thofe Perfons who have the Charge and Care of their Education ; of Governors jike-
wife, and of Magillrates, and of all others who arc put in Authority over them. Let this
fix in your Mind the excellent Maxim of the good Phyfician, Fenienti occurrite Mirbs.
Let us defend ourfelves againft the firlt Temprtations to Sin, and guard our Innocency as
we would our Lives ; for if once we yicld, though but a little, in whofe Power is it 1o
fay, Hitherto will I go, and no further?

And now, Gentlemen of the Jury, thofe Obfervations I had before mentioned, T fhall
attempt to lay before you, in order to aflilt you in making a true Judgment of the Mat-
ter committed to your Charge. The Author and Contriver of this bloody Affair is not
at prefent here, I fincerely wilh that he was ; becaufe we fhould be able to convince him,
that fuch Crimes as his cannot elcape unpunifhed. The unhappy Priforer, ruin’d and nn-
done; by the weacherous Flatwery and pernicious Advice of that abandon’d, infidious
and execrable Wretch, who had found means of introducing himfelf into her Father’s
Family, and, whilft there, by falfc Pretences of Love, gain’d the Affetion of his only
Daughter and Child. Love! did Icall it? It deferves not the Name ; if it was Love of
any thing, it was of the Ten thoufand Pounds, fuppofed to be the young Lady’s
Fortune. Could a Man that had a Wife of his own, and Children, be really in Love
with another Woman ? Such a thing cannot be fuppofed, and therefore 1 beg Leave to
call it Avarice and Luft only ; but be it what it will, the Life of the Father mes an
Obftacle to the criminal Proceedings that were intended and defigned to be cariizd on
between them, and therefore he mult be remov'd, before that imaginary State of Fe-
licity could be obrain’d, according to their projefted Scheme. Mark how the De-
{truction of this poor Man is uther'd into the World : Apparitions, Noifes, Voices,
Mufick, reported to be heard from time to time in the Deceafed’s Houfe. Ewen his
Days are number’d out, and his own Child limits the Space of his Life buc all the fol-
lowing Month of Oéfeber. What could be the Meaning of this, but to pare the
World for a Death that was predetermin’d? Who could limit the Days of a Man’s Life,
but a Perfon that knew what was intended to be done towards the thortening of it ?

In order to bring this about, Cramfsun fends Prefents of Pebbles as alfo a Powder to
clean them; and this Powder, Gentlemen, you will find is the dreadful Peifon that
2ccomplifhed this abominable Scheme. .

From time to time mention is made of the Pebbles; but not a Syllable of the
Powder. 'Why not of the one as well as of the other, if there had not been a M ﬂcr’y
concealed in it? Preparation is made for an Experiment of its Power before Cran, 3
Departure ; he mixes the deadly Draughe ; but the Prifoner’s Condcience, not yet har-
den’d, forc*d her to turn away her Eyes, and fhe durft not venture to behold the Cup pre-
pared, that was to fend the Father into another World.

Soon after this Cranfeun quits the Family, (having, no &:ﬂiﬂn, left Inftructions how
to proceed farther in compleating the Scheme he had laid for raking off the old Man) and
this you'll find by Letters under his own Hand, that the Powder, whatever it was, muft
not be mix’d in oo thin a Liguid; becaufe it might be difcover’d ; and therefore Water-
gruel is thought fitter for the Purpofe. By the frequent Mixtures that were made upon thefe
Occalions, the unfortunate Servantand Chairwoman accidentally drank Part of the deadly
Compolition. When Complaint is made of their Sicknefs, how dots the Prifoner behave ?
Does fhe not adminifter 1o them with as much Art and Skill as a Phyfician could ? Daoes
fhe not preferibe proper Liquids and Draughts to abforb and take off the Edge of the
corroding Poifon # If fhe knew not what it was, how could fhe adminifter fo fuccefs-
fully to prevent the fatal Cenfequences of it both in the Maid and the Chairwoman # Du-
ring this Tranfaftion, the unhappy Father finds himfelf afflifted with torturing Pains,
immediately after receiving the Compofition from his Daughuer.  Is there any Care taken
of him? Any Phylician fent for to atwend him? Any healing Draughts prepar’d to
quict the Racks and Tortures that he inwardly fele? None at all, that I can find. He
is lefe to take care of himfelf, and undergo thofe Miferics that his own Child had broughe
upon him, and yet had not the Heart to give him any Affiftance. What could this pro-
ceed from, but Guilt only? Would not an innocent Child have made the ftrictelt En-
quiry how her ¢wn Father came to be out of order? Would fhe not have fought the
World over for Advice and Afiftance 2 But inftead: of that, you hear the bittereft Ex-
preflions proceed from her, Expreflions fufficient to fheck human Nature, They bave been
all mentioned alveady by my learned Leader, and I will not again repeat them.

Obferve as things come nearer the Criis, whether her Behaviour towards her Father
carries any better Appearance, When it began to be fulpedted that Mr. Blandy’s Dil-
order was owing to Polon, and flrengly, fﬁmﬁrcumﬂmwﬂ, that the Prifoner was
privy to it, the poor Man, now too lrar gone, being inform’d thar there was greac
Reafon to fufpet his own Child, what Expreflions does he make ufe of ? nfﬁ

harlher,
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harfher, than in the gentleft Methbd fiyingy Poor Levefick Girl. I always thought thcre

# Mifehicf, in thofe Scotch Pebbles, O1 that d——d Villain Cranftoun, that bas ca?
?rﬁ: éﬂ' and drank of the byt wy. Houfe afforded, to forve me thas, and ruin my posr
Love-fick Girl, |

An inconteftable Proof that tic knew the Caule of his Diforder, and the
Authors of it

The R?-: fpread about the Houfe of the Father’s Sufpitions, foon alarm’d the
Prifaner ; What does the do upon this Occalion ? Can any other Interpretation be put upon
her Actions, than that they proceeded from a manifeft Inrention to conceal her Guile? Wh
is the Paper of Powder chrown into the Fire? From whence, as my learned Leader mo!
elegantly obferves, it is miraculoully preferved. Whar occafion for Concealment, had the
not been confcious of fomething that was wrong ? If fhe Kad not known whar had been
in the Paper, for what Purpofc was it committed to the Flames? And what really was
contained in that Paper, will appedr to you to beé deadly Poifon, -

The | withed for and faral Hour ar laft armvis 5 and but a liegle before, a
Letter is fent by the Prifoner to Cranfloun, that her Father was extremely il Beg-

ing him to be cautious,swhat be writes, Jelt any Accident ' (hould happen o bis Letters.
%‘;ﬁth: Circumitances, the Language, or the Time of writing this Letter leave any
room to fuppofe the Prifoner could be innocent 7 They feem to me, rather to be the
fulleft Proot of her knowing what fhe had done. What ‘Accidents could befall Crax-
Soun's- Letters? Why is he to take care what he writes, if nothing but the Effeéts of
Innocency were to be contained in thofe Letters # In a very fhort Time after this, the
Strengeh of the Poifon carries the Father out of the World, D bue heat how the Pri-
foner behaved thereupon.  The Father's Corpfe was not yet cold, when fhe makes Aps
rﬁuﬁunmth: Footman, wich a Temptation of large Sums of Money, as a Reward, if

e would go off with her ; but the Fidelity and Virtue of the Servant was Proof againit
the Temptation even of Four.or Five Lundred Pounds, The next Propofal is to the
Maid, to procure a Chaife, with the Offer of a Reward for fo doing, and to go along
with her to Landor 5 but this Project likewife failed, through the Honefty of the Ser-
vant. The nexe Morning, in ithe Abfence of Edward Herne, (the Guard that was feé
over her) fhe makes her cicape from her Father’s Houfe, and dreffed as if going to tike

a ]af:uui-n.:me walked down the Street; but the Mob was foon aware of her, and forcd
her to take Shelter in a Publick-Houfe over the Bridge. Do thefe Proceedings look as
if they were the Effcéts of Innocence ? Far othe

rwife I am afraid.  Would an innocent
Pesfon have quiteed a decoafed Parent’s Houfe, ar a Time when fhe was moft wanting
to make proper and decent Preparations for his Funeral? Would an innocent Perfon, at

fuch a Time as this, offer Money for Affiftance to make an Elcape 7 I think not : :{nd
I with fhe may find a favisfactory Caufe fo aflign for fuch amazing Behaviour.

Leet us put Innacence and Guile in the Scale together, and Oh%:rve to which Side the
Prifoner’s Ations are molt a plicable:  Jinocence, Ceeleitial Virgin, always has her Guard
about her ; the dares look the Frowns, the Refentments, and the Perfecutions of the
World in the Face ; is able to ftind the Teft of the ftricteft Inquiry ; and the more
we behold her, ftiil the more thall we be in Love

: with her Charms.  Bu it is not (b with
Guilt, the baneful Fiend, makes ufe of unjuftifiable Means to conceal her wicked Defigns

and prevent Difcovery.  Ardfice and Cunning are her Supporters, Bribery and Corruption
the ]Erfmdm of her Caufe ; the flies before the Face Law and Juftice, and thuns the
Probation of a candid and impartial Inquiry. Upon the whele Marer, you Gentlemen;
are to judge ; and judge as favourably as you can for the Priftner,

If this were not fufficient to convince us of the Prifoner’s Guilt, T think the laft Trani
aftion of all will leave not the lealt Room to doubt, When in Difcourfe with Perfons that
came to her at the Houfe where fhe had taken Shelter, what but a Self-convition
could have drawn fuch Exprefiions from ber, in her Dilcourfe wich Mr. Fifber about
Cranfisun, you will find fhe declared the had Letters and Pa rs that would have hanged
that Villain? And again, fays, wy Homour, Mr. Fifber, to that Fillsin bas broagls e 1
Defirustion : And again, in her Inquiry of Mr. Lanz, What they would do wich her, fhe
burfls out into this bitter Exclamation, © ! that d—nd Villainy then after a thore Paufe, But
why fbould I blame bim 2 1 am more to blame than be isy for 1 gave it Bim. How could
flie be t blame for giving it, if the knew not what it was ? And, as it is faid, went yet
farther, and declared,  that fBe knec the Confequence. IF the did know it, fhe muft ex-
péét o fuffer the Confequence of it o,

Thus, Gentlemen, have I endeavoured to lay before you fome Obfervations upon this
Tranfadlion, and I hope you will think: them not uaworthy of yeur Confideration. [

trult I have faid nothing that relaces to the F. » that is not in my Inftructions ; fheuld

it be otherwife, Laffure you it was not wich Defign. And whatever is not fupported by legal
Evidence, you will total difregard.
8

oiin ¥ If
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If any other Interpretation, than whao I have offered, can be put upon thefe feveral
‘Tranfactions, and the Circumitances attanding them, Idmlht not but you will always
incline on t[ue merciful Side, where there is Room for fodoing.

We fhall now proceed to call our Evidence,
The other Gentlemen of Couneil for the King, were Mr, Hayes, Mr. Naru, md hi-;

Fhmbier.
The Council for.the Pnl’un:r, were Mr, Ford, Mr. Morton, and Mr, Afen.

Dr. Authony Addingten, and Dr, William Lewis, fworn, e

Couneil. Did you, Dr. didingten, attend Mr, Blandy in his laft llln:fs? Pt

Dir. Addingtop. Yes, Sir, .

Centmerl, %htn was you called to him the firlt Time? - i

Dr. dddington. On Saturday Evening, Aagaff the 10th. ', E

Council. In what Condition did you find him #

Dr. Addingten. He was in Bed 5 and told me, that, after drinking Fumt Grucl o J.
Minday Night, Auga the sth, he had perecived an -::’xlmnrdrnary Grittinefs in his Mouth,
attended with a very painful Burning and Pricking in his Tongue, Throdt, St
and Bowels, and with Sicknefs and Gripings ; which Symproms had been m];w'.ret] E:lq
of ?ﬂmmng and Purging. T

Coumcil. 'Were thole Fits owing to any Phyfic he had taken, or to the Gruel 2

Dr. Addington. Not to any Phyfic 5 - they came on very foon afcer dm:km, th: Grq&]..

Council. Had he taken no Phyfic that Day 2 B

Dr. Aidingien. No. ".’_4

Cogncil, Did he make any farther Complaints ? s

Dr. Addingien, He faud, chat, after drinking more Gruel on Twefiay Night, Augift the.
6th, he had felt the Grittinefs in his Mouth again, and that the Burning and Pricking in
his Tnngue, Throat, Stomach, and Bowels had return’d with' double Violerce, and bm!n
aggravated by a prodigious Swelling of his Belly, and cxquifite Pains and Pnclnhgn
in every external as well as internal Part of his Body 3 which Prickings he mmplrcd o
an infiuite Number of Needles darting into him all' at once.

Council. How foon after drinking the Gruel?

Dr. Addingten. Almolt immediately. He told me likewife, that, at the fame time, he
had hal cold Sweas, Hiccup, extreme Reftlelsnefs and Anxiety ; bot that then, iz,
on Saferday Night, dagulthe 1oth, having had a great many Srools, and fome bloody
ones, he was pretty caly every wh:rc, except in his Mouth, Lips, Nofe, Eyes, and.
Iundmr.m: and except fome tranfient Gripings in his Bowels, [ a him to what ha'
imputecl thofe unealy Senfations in his Mouth, Lips, Nofe, and Eyes: He faid, to the.
Fumes of fomething that he had taken in his Gruel, on Monday Night, Aupuf the 5thy
and Tuefday Night, Auguff the 6ch.

On Inlpe@tion, I found his Tongue fwell'd, and his Throat flightly inflam™, aml
excoriated. His Lips, efpecially the upper one, were dry and rough, and had
Pimples on them, The infide of his Nofirils was in the fame Condition. ' His Eyes
were a little blood-fhot. Belides thefe Appearances, 1 obferv’d that he had a3 low’
trembling, intermitting Pulfe 5 a difficult, unequal Refpiration 5 a yellowith Com-
plexion; a Difficulty in the Utterance of his Words; and an Inability of i'wl.!uwmg
even a Tea-fpoonful of the thinneft Liquor at a Time, :

As 1 fufpt.ﬂ-:d that thefe Appearances and Sympioms were the Effe of Poifon, I.
alk’d Mifs Blandy, whether Mr, Blandy had lately given Offence to either of his EE’I‘-'
vanis, or Clients, or any other Perfon? She anfwered, Thar be was at Peace with &l
the World, and that all 1be Werld was at Peace with bim. 1 then alk'd her, whether
he had ever been fubjett to Complaints of this Kind before # She faid, that he had
often been fubjeét to the Cholic and Heart-burn; and that fhe fuppos'd “this was onl
a Fit of that Sorr, and wou'd foon go off, asufual, I sold Mr. Bl that T mr:g
thele Quellions, becaufe I fufpicted that by fome Means or other he 2d tiken Poi-
fon. He replied, it might be fo, orin Words to that Effect : but MiG Blandy faid,
it swas impaffible.

On Swnday Norning, ;f:}gaﬁ the 1oth, he feemed much reliev’d 5 his Pulfe, Breath,
Complexion, and Power of fwallowing, were greatly mended, He had had feveral
Steols in the Night, without ary Bloodlin' them,  The ints which he had
made of his Mouth, Lips, Nofe, and Eyes, were leffen’d y but he faid the Pain in his
Fundament mnnnued, and that, he - il felt' fome P‘E-m:hmgs in his Bowels, On

viewing bis Fundament, I found ic almoft farrounded with gleety Excoriadons and

Ulcers,
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Gumnell. 1 did not.

Council. When was the firlt Time you faw him that Day ?

Gunnell. It was betwixt Nine and Ten; Mils Blandy and he were together, he was
not well ; and going to lie down on the Bad.

Couneil. Did you fee him in the Evening ?

Gumnell. In the Ewvening KRobert Harman came to me, as | was coming :Ermn Stafrs,
and told me, I mult warm fome Water-gruel, for my Malter was in haﬂttor Supper.

Council. Did you warm fome ? i

Gunnell, T warm'd fome of thar out of the Pan, of which he had fome the N:nht bie-
fore, and Mifs Blandy carried it to him into the Parlour.

Council. Did he drink it?

Gunnell. 1 believe he did ; there feem?d to be abour half of it left the next "uI-:erng"

Couneil. How did he feem to be after ?

Gunnell. 1 met him foon after he had eat the Water-gruel going up Stairs to Bed 1
lighted him up: As foon as he was gotinto the Room, he called for aBafnn to reach 3 h-:
feem’d to be very lick, by his Reaching a confiderable Time. . _

Council. How was he next Morning ?

Gunnell, Abaut Six 0’Clock I went up the next Morning, to carry him his Phyﬁck
He faid, he had had a pretry good Nighr, :11:1 was much better.

Council. Had he tcm:E ’d much over Ni

Gunnell. He had, for the Bafon was half !"ull which [ left clean over Night. '

Conncil, Was any Order given [yml to give him any more Water-gruel 2

Gumnell. On the Wednefday Mils Blandy came into the Kitchen, and faid, Sufan, as your
Malter has taken Phyfick, be may want more Water-gruel, and as there is fomein the
Houfe, you need not make freth as you are Ironing s I told her, it was flale, if there was
enough 3 and it would not hinder much to make frefh 5 fo I made frefh accordingly, and
I went into the Panuy to put fome in for my Mafter’s Dinner, then I brought cut
the Pan (the Evening before, 1 thoughe it had an odd Taite) fo 1 was willing to tafté it
again, to fee if I was miftaken or not: T putit to my Mouth, and drank fome, und taking
it from my Mouth, I obferved fome Whitenels at the Bottom.

Council. What did you do upon that

Gunnell, 1 went immediately to the Kitchen, and told Betty Binfield, there was awhute
Settlement, and I did not remember I ever had feen Oatmeal fo white before : Betty faid,
Let me fee ic; I carried it to her, the faid, What Oatmeal is this, [ think it-looks as
white as Flour? We both rook the Pan, and trn’d it about, and ftrictly oblerved it,
and concluded ll‘. could be nothing but Qatmeal. 1 then took it out of Doors, into the
Light, and faw it plainer ; then | put my Finger to it, and found it gritty, at the Bottom
of the Pan ; I then recolleéted I had heard fay, Poifon was white and gricty, which made
me afraid it was Poifon. {

Couneil. What did you do with the Pan? it

Gumnell. 1 carried it back again, and fet it down on the Dreffer in the Kitchen 5 it ﬂ:n-nd
there a fmall Time, then I lock’d it up in the Clofet, and on the Thur/day Ml:-rnmgl
carried it to Mrs, Muwmzeney, and Mr. Nerion came there and faw it

C:mmf Do you remember Mifs Blandy faying any thing to you, about eating htr
Pappa's Water-gruel]?

Gumnell. About fix Weeks before his Death, I went into the Parleur; Mlﬁa Blandy
faid, Swfan, what is the Matter with you? You do not look well ; T faid, I do not know
wh:lt is the Matter, I am not well, but I do not know what th: Mamr is. She faid,
What have you eat or drank ? upon which I faid, Nothing more than the reft of the Fa-
mily,  She faid, Sufan, have you eat any Water-gruel, for I am told Water-gruel hurts me,
and it may hure you, 1 faid, Ircannot affect me, Madam, for I havenot eat any.

Council. What was ic * Bmy Binfield faid ro you about Water-gruel ?

Guunell. Betty Binfield faid,” Mifs Blandy afk’d, if I had eat any of her Pappa’s Water-
gruel ? faying if I did, I might do for myfelf, a Perfon of my Age.

Conmcil. What time was this ?

Giamell, 1 cannot fay, whether it was jult after, or jult before, the Time fhe had I'pokc
to me herfeli.  Onthe }¥ednsjday Morning, as 1 was coming down Stairs, from givi
Matter his Phylick, I met Elizabeth B:xﬁd, with the Water-gruel in a Bafon, whic hn
had left 3 I faidito the Chairwoman, .dnn Emmit, Dame, you uled to be ﬁ:md of Water-
gruel, here is a ver l}' fine Mefs my Mafter left laft Nighr, and [ believe it willdo you good ;
the Woman foon [at down on a Bench in the Kitchen and eat fome of it, I cannoz fay all.

; ouneil.

* N. B. The Council fior the Prifoner wav'd the Clll eflion to this 2: Hupﬁy Evidence ; beeaufe the Coun-
til forthe Crown aflur'd them, they Mould call Perry Bi infield herfelf next,
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Ceuncil. How was the afterwards ? L

Gamnell, She faid, the Houle fmelt of Phyfick, ‘and every thing tafted of Phyfick ;
fhe went out, Ibelieve into the Wath-Foufe, to reach, before the could finilh i,

Couneil. Did you follow her ? _ '

Gunmell. No, 1 did not; bur about ewenry Minutes or half an Hour after thar, T went
to the Neceffary-Houfe and found her there vomiting and reaching, and, as fhe faid,

an"n r . s
Cﬂ;';!'f. How long did the abide there ? , -
Gunnell. She was there an Hour and half, during which Time I went divers times to

her s at frlt I carried her fome Surfeic-Water, (he then defirsd, to have fome tair Water ;

the next dme | went to fee how the did, fhe faid the wasno betier 5 T defired her to come
in a Doors, hoping fhe would be better by the Fire ; fhe faid, fhe was not able to come in;

1 faid, I would lead herin; I did, and fac her down in a Chair by the Fire, the was

. vomiting, and reaching continually ; The far there about half an Hour or fomething more,

dDﬂ:hg which Time (he grew much worfe, and I thought her to be in a Fir, or feized with

own;’ Did you acquaint Mifs Blandy with the lllnefs and Symptoms of this poor

oman

Gunnell. 1 told Mifs Blandy when I went into the Room to drefs her, about Nine o*Clock,
that Dame (the Name we uled to call her by) had been very ill that Morning 5 that fhe
had complained, that the Smell of her Malter’s Phyfick had made her fick ; and that fhe
had eat nothing, but a little of her Mafter's Water-gruel, which he had lefc laft Nighe,
which could not hurt her.

Council, What did the fay to that ?

Guunell. She faid, [he was very glad, fhe was not below Stairs, for fhe fhould hare

been fhocked, to have feen her poor Dame fo ill.

. Cowncil, As you have lived Servant in the Houfe, how did you obferve Mifs Blandy

behave towards her Father, and in what Manner did the ult to talk of him, three or four

Months before his Death ?

Gunzelf, Sometimes fhe would talk very affe&tionately, and fometimes but middling:

o Council. What do you mean by middling 2

. Gunucll, Sometimes fhe would fay, he was an old Villsin, for ufing an only Child in

fuch a Manner, :

- Council. Did fhe with him to live ?
Granell. Sometimes fhe wilhed for his long Life, fometimes for his Death.
Council. When the withed for his Death, in what Manner did the exprefs herfelf ?
Guunell, She often faid, fhe was very unkward, and that if' ‘he was dead; e would go
to Scot/and  and live with Lady Craniffoun. : o i : '
"1 Comncil. Did fhe ever fay, how long fhe thoughe her Father might live? ;
- Gusnell. Sometimes the would fay, for his Conftitution he might hive thefe twenty
Years, fometimes the would fay, he looked ill and poorly. -
o iCeunesl; Do you remember when Dr. Addingion was fent for, on'the Saimrday ?
. Gunnell. 1 do.
Council. Had Mifs Blandy ufed to go into her Father's Room after that Time ?
Guanell. She did as often as the pleafed till Sunday-Night 5 then Mr. Nerton took Mif
Blardy down Stairs, and defired me not to ler any Body go into the Room, except myfelf
to wait on him, !
Cowncil. Did fhe come in afterwards? : -
Gunnell. She came. into the Room on Monday-Morning, foon after Mr. Norton came
in, or with him 3 I went in about ro o’Clock again,
Council. What Converfation paffed, between Mifs Blandy ‘and her Father - -
o« Gammell. She fell down on' Her'Knees and faid to him, Banifh me, or fend me to any
remoge Parc of sthe World ; do whar you pleafe, fo you forgive me; and as to Mr. Gran-
Souny 1 will never fee him, fpeak to him, nor write to him more, o long as I live,
fo you will fargive me. i

+ Council. What Anfwer did he make? :

. Gunwell. He faid, I forgive thee, my Dear, and 1 hope God will forgive thee ; but thee
fhould bave confidered better, than to have attempted any thing againit chy Father; thee
{hould*t bave confidered, 1 wasthy own Father. = '
: Couneil. What faid fhe to this?

Gunnell. She anfwered, Sir, as for your Illnefs, T am intirely innocent. I faid, Madam,
I believe you mulk not fay you are intirely innocent, for the Powder that was taken out
of the Water-gruel, and the Paper of Powder that was taken out of the Fire, are W;

. ki : ] 2 ; 1 :
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in fuch Hands, that they muft be publickly produced: I told her, . I believed 1 had ane
Dofe prepared for my Mafter in a Difh of Tea, about fix Weeks ago. '
Couneil. Did you tell her this before her Father ? (T o
Gamnell. 1 did. 1ol it woy hid )
Council, What Anfwer did (he make? son bib I oW :
Gunnell. She faid, I have put no Powder into Teaj I have put Powder into Water-
ruel, and if you are injured, am intirely innocent, for it was given me with another
FER e :
Council. What faid Mr. Blandy to this? . . o
Gumnell.. My Mafter turned himfelf in his Bed, and faid to her, Ob! Such o Fillain,
come {o my Houfe, cat of the beft and drink of the bejt, that my Honfe cowd afferd, 1o take
away my Life, and ruin my Daaghter, jg ok : 1
Casomeil, What elfe paffed 2 : ; ; L '
Gunwell. Fle faid, Oh! My Dear| Thee muft hate that Man, thee mult hate the Ground
he treads on, thee canit not help it. The Daughter faid, Oh! Sir, your Tendernels towards
me is like a Sword to my Heart; every Word you fay is like Swords piercing my Heart; much

worle,, than if you were to beever fo angry. 1 mult down on my Knees, and beg you
will not curfe me, ¢ nemoW

Counesl. 'What faid the Father ? 1 et il Wer 1 Ao
Gunnell. He faid, [ curfe thee! my Dear, bew couldfi thou think I could curfe shee? No
I biefs thee, and bope Ged swill befs thee, and amend tby Life s and faid further; Do, sy
deary po out ef wy Reow, fay no mare, left thou fhowldf fay any Thing to thy own f'r;fidiﬂ:
Ga 1o thy Uncle Stevens, take bim for thy Friend, poor Man ! I am forry for bim. Upon
this fhe direétly went cut of the Room, ) i )
. Coumcil. Give an Account of the Paper you mentioned to her, thow it was found.
Gumuell. On the Sarurdey before my ﬁ:ﬂrr died, I was in the Kitchen, Mifs Blendy had
wrote a Direction on a Letter to go to her Uncle Stevews.  Going o the Fire to dry it, 1
faw her put a-Paper into the Fire, or two Papers, I cannot fay whether. 1 went
to the Fire, and faw her ftir it down with a Stck: El Binfield, then
on frefh Coals, which I believe kept the Paper from being confumed. Soon after Mils
Blandy had put it in, fhe left the Kitchen ; I faid w0 Elizaberd Binfield, Betty, Mifs Blandy
has bren burning fomething 3 The afked, Where ? I pointed to the Grate, and faid, At that
Corner 5 upon which Bety Binfield moved a Coal, and took from thence a little E'I:-rl"; ) 4
ftood by and faw her, fhe gave it into my Hand ; it was a {mall Pi¢ce of Paper, with fome

Writing on it, folded up abeut three Inches long.  The Writing was, The Potwder to clean
the Pebbles, to the beft of my Remembrance. -
Cownedd,  Did you read it?

Gumell, | did not, Elizabeth Binfield read it to me. [ Produced in Court, Part
of it burnt, fealed up svith the Earl of MaccresrieLd | ¢rd Lord CApocan’s
Sealr.) This is the Paper, 1 believe by the Look of ie; but I didonot fee it un-
folded, 1 delivered it into Elizabeth Binfieid’s Hand on Satwrday-Night, between
Eleven and Twelve o'Clock. From the Time it was taken out of the Fire, it had
not been out of my Pocket, or any Thing done to it, from that Time tll I gave it her.
I went mto my Mafter's Room abput Seven o'Clock in the Morning, to carry him fome-
thing to drnk ; when he had (drank ir, I faid, I have fomething to fay to you concern-
ing your Flealthy and concerning your Family 5 T muft beg you will not put yourfelf in
a Pafiion, but hear me what I have to fay : Then I told him, 1 believe, Sir, you have
got fomething in your Water-gruel, that has done you fome Injury, and I believe Mifs
Blawdy put it in,’ by her coming into the Wath-Houfe on Monday, and faying, fhe had

-been flirring her Pappa’s Water-gruel, and tatiog the Oatmeal out from the Bortom : He
faid, I find I have fomething not right : My Head is not right as it ufed to be, nor has
been for fgme Time, 1 had before told him, 1had found the Powder in the Gruel: he
faid, - Doft thou know any Thing of this Powder? Didft thee ever fee any of it? I faid;
ey Siry I never fawany, but what I faw in the Water-gruel. He faid, Doft know: where
the had this Powder, nor canft not thee guels? I faid, 1 cannot tell, except fhe had it of
Mr. Cranfisan. My Reafon for fufpeéting that was; Mafs Blasdy had Letters came oftener
than ufval, . My Mafter faid, And now thee metitions ir, 1 remember, when he was at my
Houle, he mentioned a particular Poifon that they hadin their Country ; faying, Ob ! sbat
Villain] that swver be come to my Houfe ! 1 told him likewife, I hail hewed the Powder to Mr.
Norton; he afked, what Mr. Nersen faid to it? I told him, Mr. Nerser could not fay what
it was, asit waswet, bucfaid, Let it bé what it will, it ought not to be there 3 and faid, he
was fearful, there was foul Play fomewhere, My Mafter faid, What, Norses not know | that
is frange, angd fo much ufed to Drugs: . Then I told him, Mr. Nertox thoughe proper he
fhould fearch her Pockets, and take away her Keys, and Papers. He faid, I cannot do

2
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it, T cannot fhock her fo much ; canft not thee when thou goeft into her Room, take
out a Letter or two, that fhe may think the dropped them by Chance. [ told him, Ihad
no Right to do ic: She is your Daughter, and you have a Right to do ir, and no body
elfe. He faid, I never in all my Lifte read a Letter that came to my Daughter, from
any Perfon. He defired, if poffible, if T could meet with any Powder any where, that I
would fecure it

Council, Do you remember when dun Enmert was fick (the Chair-womant? )

Gunmell. 1 do, but cannot fay how long, or how little a Time before thisy I remember
fhe was ill fome Time before my Mafter’s Death.

Commcil. What did the Prifoner order the old Woman to eat at that Time ?

Guuneli, She fent her fome Sack-Whey, and fome Broth., Ibelieve to the Value of a
Quart or three Pints at twice, about once a Day, or every other Day for four or five Days.

Conncil. Have you been ill, from what you eat yourfelf?

Gunnell. I wasill, after drinking a Difh of Tea onc Sunday Morning, which I thought
was not well refithed, and I believed Somebody had been taking Salts in the Cup before,

Council. Who was it pour’d out for ?

Guanell. 1 believe it was pour'd out for my Mafter.

Conncil. Why do you believe that ?

Guanell, Becaufe he ufed to drink in a different Dith from the relt of the Family, and
it was out of his Difh.

Council. When was this ?

Gunnell. This was about fix Weeks and three Days before his Death.

Council. How did you find yourfelf, after drinking it ?

«Guanmucell. 1 found no ill Effeét till after Dinner : 1 then had a Hardnefs in my Stomach,
and apprehended it was from eating plentifully of Beans for Dinner.

Council. What Symptoms had you afterwards ?

Guunell, My Stomach feemed to have fomething in it that could not digeft, and I had
remarkable Trembling for three Days, and after that for three Momings was feiz’d with a
Reaching, . .

Camr%.ﬂ Have you fince that Time been ill, from what you eat or drank?

Guomell, 1 tafted the Water-gruel twice, once on the Tuefday Evening, when I was
- mixing it for my Mafters and on #edmefday, when I was going to pour it away, I put the
. Pan to my Mouth, and drank a little uf"ir‘f.ﬂj SR e

Council, How did you find yourfelf after that 2

Gumnell. 1 did not find any remarkable Diforder till the IFednefday Morning about
2 o'Clock, before my Mafter's Death 3 then I was feemingly feized with Convulfions.
My Throat was very troublefome for 5 or 6 Weeks after, and leemed a little forith and a
lirtle fwelled. I continued very ill for three Weeks and uvpwards, after my Matter's
Death, which was on the #Fedrefday. I went to Bed fick at 2 that Morning, and apply’d
to Dr. Addingten.

Council. you remember any thing befides Letters coming from Mr. Cranfoun 2

Gunnell, 1 remember fhe had once a large Box of Table-Linen, and fome Scorch Pebbles
i ity the faid, they came from him.

Council, What Time was this? |

Gumnell. This was early in the Spring, before my Mafter’s Death.

Corncil. Had fhe more than one Box fent to her ?

Gunnell. She had a fmall Box fent afterwards of Scorch Pebbles ; that might be about
three Months before his Death, or lefs, 1 cannot fay.

. Council. Did fhe ulfe to fhew the Pebbles to any Body ¢

Gunnell, She uled to thew them to any Perfon of her Acquaintance ; but I never heard
of any Powder to clean them.

Crofs Examined.

Prifoner’s Council. For a Year before the sth of Auguf laft, had any thing ailed your
Mafter, fo astocallin the Apothecary ?

Gumnell. About a Year h-egnre he had had a violent Cald.

Prif. Council. Was he or was he not in good Health for a Year before ?

{:r'lt.lmﬂf. He was frequently complaining of the Gravel, and Heart-burn, which he was
fubject to for Years.

rif- Council. Did he make any other Complaints #

Gunnell. Heufed to have lietle Fits of the Goue.

Prif. Council. Was there any other Complaint for 7, 8, g, or 10 Years?

Guanell. Nothing particular, buc that of the Heart-burn; which I cannot tell whether
I ever heard him complain of before or not, Prif
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Prif. Council, Can you take upon you to fay, that he made any particular Complaint of
the Heart-burn, more than he had done at any other time ? '

Gunnell. 1 cannot fay pofitively ; becaufe I have not continued thefe things in my
Memory. He order’d me to give him fome dry Oatmeal and Water, for the Heart-
burn.

Prif. Council. Is that good for the Heart-burn?

Gumnell. 1 have been wold, 1t is very good for ir

Prif. Council. How was her Behaviour to her Father ?

Gumnell, Her general Behaviour was dutiful, except upon any Paflion, ora halty Word
from her Father.

Prif. Conncil. When did fhe call her Father, old Villain

Gunnell. She would ufe Expreffions of that kind, when the was in a Paffion.

FPrif. Council. Upon what Account ?

Gunnell. For ufing her ill.

King®s Commeil, Were thefe Expreffions made ufe of before his Face, or behind his Back?

Guniell. 1 have heard her before his Face, and behind his Back.

Prif. Comncif. When have you heard it ?

Gunwell. 1 believe in the lait 12 Months ; but cannot be fure.

King"s Council. Recolle€t on what Oceafion ?

Guanell, It has been, 1 believe, on litdle Paffions on both Sides, and that generally from
Trifles.

Prif. Council. When did you furlt communicate your Sufpicion to Mr. Blandy, about his
being poiloned ?

Gumnell, On the Satzrday Morning before his Death, from what I faw on the Wedwe/day
before.

Prif. Comneil. Why did you keep this Sufpicion of yours, -from #ednefday to Saturday 2

Gunnell. The Reafon I did not tell my Sufpicions to Mr. Blandy, fooner than Sas .
was, becaufe I ftaid for Mr. Srevens the Prifones’s Uncle, who did not come till Friday-
Night ; I told him then, and he defired me to tell Mr. Blandy of it.

Prif. Comncil, Did you cver fay any thing of it to Mifs Blandy ?

Gumeell, No, 1 did not.

Prif. Council. Pray what Converfation paffed beeween her Father and her down upon
her knees, E5¢? ;

Gumnell. She faid, Sir, how do youdo? he faid, 1am very iil.

Prif Council. Was any Thing faid about Mr. Cranflesn’s Addreffes to her?

Gunnell. Yes, there was. That Converfation was occilioned by a Meffage, that Mr.
Blandy had fent o his Daughter by me on Mowday-Moming,

Prif. Council. "W hat was that Meflage ?

Gunnell. That he was ready to forgive her, if fhe would but endeavour to bring that
Villain to Juftice.

Prif. Council. Did the fay, with what Intent the Powder was given to her?

Gunnell. She faid, it was given her with another Intent.

Prif. Connmcil. Did [he fay ¢ Upon what Intent?

Gunnell. She did not fay that. He did not afk that.

Prif. Council. Was not that explained ?

Gumnell, It was no ways explained.

Prif. Council. Did he treat her, as if fhe herfelf was innocent.

Guunell, He did, Sir,

Prif. Council. Then all he faid afterwards was as thinking his Daughter very innocent.

Gumnell. It was Sir.

P}}ﬂ Council. As to the Ruin of his Daughter, did he think it was entirely owing to
Cranfteun ?

Gumnell. Mr. Blandy faid, he believed his Daughter intirely innocent of what had hap-

ned.
Ft,Prr]': Ceuncil. By what he faid to you, do you think that the Father thought his Daughter
was impofed upon by Cranffoun, when he ufed that Exprefion, 8be muft bare ibe Man, 8ec?

Gunnell. 1 do think fo; he faid, Where is Pally 7 I anfwered, In her Room ; he faid,
Poor unfertunate Girl! that ever fbe fhowld be impofed wpon and led away by fuch a Fillain to
do fuch a thing.

Prif. Councsl, Do you imagine from the whole Converfation that pafied between her Fa-
ther and her, that fthe was intirely innocent of the Faét, of the Powder being given 2

Gunnell, 1 do not think fo ; fhe faid, fhe was innocent.

_Prif. Comneil, What was your Opinion, did the Father think her whelly unacquainted

with the Efeft of the Powder? ; i
BENERs
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%3
Gunnell. 1 believe he thought fo; that is as much as I can fay.”

Prif. Council, When .you teld Mils Blandy that the Walher-woman was extremely ill,
having eat fome Water-gruel, was any Thing more (aid with relation to the Father's having
eat fome of the fame Water-gruel before ?

Gn?nf-'!. 1 don’t remember there was a Word faid, about the Father’s having eat
any of ir. h y p

Prif. Council. During the Time of his Illnefs, was not Mifs Blandy's Behaviour to her
Father, with as much Care and Tendernefs as any Daughter could fhew ?

Gunnell. She feemed to direft every Thing as fhe could have done for herfelf, or
any other Perfon that was fick. -

Prif. Council. Do you know that fhe was guilty of any Negledt in this Refpect ?

Guwnell, We, 1 do not Sir.

ﬁ’: Conuncil. What did he mean when he faid, Poor unfortunate Girl, that ever fhe
fhould be impofed upon, and led away by fuch a Villain to do fuch a Thing! What do
you imagine, he meant by fuch a Thing?

Gunuell. By giving him thar, which fhe did not know what it was.

Court, When the twld you, shat Water-gruel would ferve for her Father on the 7#ed-
#¢fday, did fhe know thac her Father had beenill, by taking Water-gruel on the Monday
and Tuefday Nights ?

Gumnell. She knew he was ill, but I can’t tell whether fhe knew the Caufe of it; and
knew that the Chair-woman was ill, before (he propofed my giving him the fame Gruel ;
but did not oppofe my making frefh, for any other Reafon, than that it would hinder my
ironing.

Elizabeth Binfield {worn.

YF::I:ﬁ-rH- I was Servant to Mr. Francis Blandy at Henley, and had been almoft three
ears

Council. When did you firlt difcover his Illnefs, and hear him complain of unufual
Prickings in his Stomach ?

Binfield. About a Fortnight before he died.

Council. Did you ever hear Mifs Blandy talk of fomething in the Houfe, which fhe
faid ‘p:al'zftd his Death, or fomething like it ?

. B . I have often heard her talk of Walkings and Mufick in the Floufe that fhe had
heard ; fhe faid, fhe thought it to be her Mother; faying, the Mufick foretold her Father"s

Council. Who has the faid fo to ?

Binfiald. She has told me fo.

Council. How long ago ?

Binfield. For fome Time before her Father’s Death ; I believe for three Quarters of a Year.
Council. How long did fhe continue talking in this Manner ?

Binfield. She didrill his Death 3 1have often heard her fay, he would die before OFoler.
Council. What Reafons did the give for that ¢

Binfield. By the Mufick; faying {he bad been informed that Mufick foretels Death
within a Twelve-month. '

Ceuncil. Who did fhe fay had informed her o ?

Binfield. She faid Mr. Cranfoun had been to fome famous Woman who had informed

him fo, and named one Mrs. Morgan who lived eicher in Scotfand, or Lowdon; 1 can’c fay
which.

Council. Did the exprels herfelf glad, or forry ?

Binfield. Glad, for chat then fhe fhould foon be releafed from all her Fatigues, and
foon be happy.

Council. Did fhe talk of the Stare of Health in which he was?

Binfield. Sometimes fhe has faid, he has been very well, fometimes ill. T remember
I heard her fay that my Mafter complained of a Ball of Fire in his Guts 5 I believe it was
before the Afonday he eat the Water-gruel, 1 can’t particularly fay, I believe a Forenighe

before he died; then fhe faid Mr. Cranfloun had told her of that famous Woman's Opi-
mion about Mufick.

Coancil. Do you remember the firft Time one Anw Emmet was taken ill?

Binfield. Tt was about a Month or fix Weeks before.

Council. Do you know what Mifs Blandy ordered her in that Illnefs ? :

Binfield. 1do. She ordered her fome white Wine Whey, and Broth feveral Times.

I made it two or three Times, two Quarts at a Time,

Cauncil. Do you remember a Paper being taken out of the Fire?

Binfie/ld. 1 do, It was on the Saturday before my Matter died, I took it out ﬂ}rfcclﬂ .
2 CHAETH.
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Council, Should you know it again; if you fee it ?

Binfield. 1 believe I thould, (Be is fewn a Paper,) I really believe this is ir,
which 1 took out of the Fire, and delivered it to Sufan Gumnell; after which [ had it
again from her, and I delivered it to Dr. Addington, and Mr. Nerion.

Council. Do you remember Mifs Blandy’s faying any thing about Sufan Gunwells eating
the Water-gruel ¢

Binfield. 1 do. When Sufan was ill; fhe afked me, how Sufan did? I faid very ill.
Said fhe, Do you remember her ever drinking her Mafter’s Water-grucl ? 1 fiid, Not as

1 know of. She faid If fbe, does fbe may do for berfelf, may I teli you.

Council. Did fhe bid you tell Sefan fo?

Binfield. She did not bid me tell Sufan, but I did tell her,

Comneil, What Time was this ?

Binfield, Tt might be about a Month or fix Weeks, before Mr. Blawdy’s Death.

Council. Do you remember any Expreflions fhe made ufe of about her Father?

Binfield. 1 heard her fay, Who wonld gradye o fend an old Fatber to Hell for ten thoufand
Pounds 7 Exattly them Words,

Connicil. When was this ? i
; mﬂraﬁeﬁ It was about a Month before his Death, or it may be more, I can’t

uftly eell.
- Comncil. How was this Converfation introduced ?

Binfield. She was fpeaking of young Girls being kept out of their Fortunes.

Council. Who was with you at this Time? «

Binfield. Tt was to me and no body elfe. .

Conncil, Have you heard her ufe him with bad Language #

Rinfield. 1 have heard her curfe him, call him Rafeal and Villain.

Council. What was the fo angry with her Father about ?

Binfield. Mr. Cranfloun was at cur Houfe about three Quarters of a Year before Mr.
Blandy's Death. He came in Auguf 1750, and faid there ull near Chyifmas. T was not
agreeable to my Mafter; we ufed to think by his Temper, that he did not approve of his being
En much with his Daughter ; but I don’t believe he debarred his Daughter from keeping

im Company,
bﬂﬂmrﬁ:‘.l:: Did you ever hear him fay any Thing to her, of his having been once like to
Honed ? : .
infield. 1 was in the Kitchen when my Maflter came in to be fhaved. 1 ftayed
there till he went out again. Mils Blandy was there, and he faid, that once he had like o
have been poifoned. ; :

Comncil. When was that he fad fo?

Binfield. Tt was on the toth of duguf, faying, he was once at the Coffee-houle, or the
Lyon, and he and two other Gentlemen had like to have been poifoned by what they had
drank ; Mifs Blandy faid, Sir I remember it very well ; The fud it was at one of thofe
Places, and he faid no, it was the other. He faid, One of the Gentlemen died immediately,
the other is dead now, and I have furvived them both ; but it is my Fortune to be poi-
foned at laft. He look’d very hard at her, during the Time he was wlking. .

Council. What did he fay was put into the Wine ? ]

Binfield. 1 remember he faid, it was white Arfenic.

Couneil. When he look’d hard at her, how did fhe look ?

Binfield. She look’d in great Confulion, and all in a Tremble.

Council, Did you fic up with Mifs Blandy the Night afier her Father died 2 -

Binfield. 1 did till three o’Clock, fhe went to Bed about one. She faid to me, Betty, will
you go away with me ? If you will go to the Lyon er the Bell and hire a Poft-chaife, 1
will give you fifteen Guineas when you get into it, and ten Guineas more when we come
to Leaden. 1 faid, Where will you go then, into the Nertb? She faid, I fhall go
into the et of Ewgland. 1 faid, Shall you go by Sea? She faid, 1 believe fome
Part of «the Way. I faid, 1 will not go. Then fhe burdl intoa Laughter, and faid, J
w.? Iol:.ﬂj.' in a Foke, did you think Iwas in earngft? Yes, faid 1. No, faid fhe, I rwas
BRI JORENE.

E“wmﬁ Did you ever hear Mifs tell Dr. Addingrom, that fhe had given your Mafler
fome of that Powder ? -

Binfield. 1 heard Mils Blandy tell the Doctor, fhe had given my Malter fome of that
Powder before in a Dith of Tea, which, the faid, he did not drink, and the throwed into
the Street out of the Window, fearing fhe fhould be difcover'd, and fll’d the Cup again ;
and that Safan Guumell drank it, and was ill for a Week afier.

Cewncil, WWhen was this?
. 4 Binfield.






26  The TryYAL of Mary Blandy, Spinfler,

Here Dr. ddingion is appealed to by the Council for the Prifoner.

Prifoner’s Council. Do you, Dr. Addingtor, remember Mifs Blandy’s telling you on
Msnday Night, Auguff the 12th, that fhe had on a Sunday Morning, about fix Weeks be-
fore, when her Father was abfent from the Parlour, mix’d a Powder with his Tea; and
that Sufan Gumnell had drank that Tea ?

Dr. Addington. ' I remember her telling me that Mowday Nighr, cthat fhe had on a
Sunday Morning about fix Weeks before, when her Father was abfent from the Parlour,
mixed a Powder with his Tea; but do not remember her faying, that Swfan Guamell had
drank that Tea. 1 have feveral times heard Swfan Gumeell fay, that fhe was fure fhe had
been poifoned by drinking Tea out of Mr. Blandy’s Cup that Swwday Morning,.

Prifener’s Council. Did not Mifs Blandy declare to you, that fhe had always thought
the Powder innocent

Dr., Addington. Yer.

Prifoper’s Council. Did fhe not always declare the faime ¢

Dr. Addington. Yes.

The King’s Comncil then interpofed and faid, that he had not intended to mention
what had paffed in Difcourfe between the Prifoner and Dr. Addingron ; buc that now,
as her own Council had been pleafed to call for Pare of it, he defired the whole mighe
be laid before the Courr.

Dr. Addingter. * On Monday Night Aupwf che 12th, after Mifs Blandy had been fe-
cured, and her Papers, Keys, & taken from her, fhe threw herlelf on the Bed and
groaned ; then raifed herfelf, and wrung her Hands and faid, That it was impoffible
for any Words to defcribe the Horrors and Agoenies in her Breatt; thar Mr.
Cranftoun had ruined her ; that fhe had ever, till now, believed him a Man of the (lricteft
Honour 5 that fhe had mixed a Powder with the Gruel, which her Father had drank
on the foregoing Monday and Twefday Nights ; that fhe was the Caule of his Death, and
that the defired Life for no End, but to go through a painful Penance for her Sin.  She
protefted at the fame Time, that the had never mixed the Powder with any Thing
elfe that he had fwallowed ; and that fhe did not know it to be Poifon, till fhe had feen
its Effects. She faid, that fhe had received the Powder from Mr. Cranffown, with a Pre-
fent of Seotch Pebbles; that he had wrote on the Paper that held ir, The Powder to clean
2he Pebbles eoitk s that he had affured her it was harmlefs 5 that he had often 1aken it him-
felf 3 thae if fhe would give her Father fome of it now and then, a little and a litele at a
Time, in any Liquid, it would make him kind to him and her ; that accordingly about
fixWeeks before, at Breakfalt-time, her Father being out of theRoom, fhe had put a little
ofir inte his Cup of Tea, but that he never drank it; thac Part of the Powder wimming
at Top of the Tea, and Part finking to the Bottom, fhe had poured it out of the Win-
dow, and filled up the Cup with frelh Tea ;5 that chen fhe wrote to Mr. Cranflown, to let
him know, that fhe could not give it in Tea without brin% difcovered ; and thar, in his
Anfwer, he had adviled her to give it in Water-gruel for the future, or in any other
thickith Fluid. T afked her, whether the would endeavour to bring Mr. Cranffeun to Juf-
tice ? After a fhort Paufe, fhe anfwered, that fhe was fully confcious of her own Guilt,
and was unwilling to add Guilt to Guilt; which [he thought (he thould do, if the took
any Step to the Prejudice of Mr. Cranfloan ; whom fhe confidered as her Hufband, tho*
the Ceremony had not paffed between them.

King’s Council, 'Was any thing more fiid by the Prifoner or you?

Dr. Addingten, 1 afked her, whether fhe had been fo weak as to believe the Pow-
der, that the had putinto her Father's Tea and Gruel, fo harmlefs as Mr. Cramfous
had reprefented it? Why Mr. Crasfean had called it a Powder to clean Pebblss, if it
was intended only to make Mr, Blawdy kind ¢ Why the had not tried it on herfelf, before
fhe ventur'd to try it on her Father? Why fhe had flung it into the Fire? Why, if (he
had really thoughe it innocent, fhe had been fearful of a Difcovery, when Purt of it fwam
on the Top of the Tea? Why, when fhe had found it hurtful to her Father, the had
neglected, lo many Days, to call proper Afiiftance to him ? And why, when | wascalled
at latk, fhe had endeavour’d to keep me in the dark, and hide the true Caufe of his
Ilinefs 2

Council, What Anfwers did the make to thefe Quellions?

Dr. Addingten, 1can’t juftly fay ; but very well remember, that they were not fuch as
gave me any Satisfaction.

Prijewer”s Council. She faid then that the was entirely ignorant of the Effefls of the
- Powdcr ?

Dr. Addingten.
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Cauncil, Did you tell her whae your Mother had eat or drank ?
Emmet. No, 1did not; only faid, my Mother was very ill, and very dry, and de-
fired [omething to drink, : ]

Mr. Robers Littdeton fworn.

I was Clerk to Mr. Blandy almoft two Years ; the latter End of Fudy la® I went ro'
my Father's in Warwickibire, and. rewrned again Augufd the gih, and breakfafted with'
Mr. Blandy and his Daughter the next Mornming, which was on a Sasarday; he wes in
great Agony and complained very much 5 he had a particular Difh to drink his Tea
in, he tafted his Tea and did not drink its faying, it had a gricty bad Tafle, and
‘afked Mifz, whether fhe had not put wo much of the black Stuff in it? Meaning Bohea
Tea. She anfwered, it was as ufual ; he tafted it again and faid, it had a bad Tafte;
fhe feemed to be in fome Sort of a Tremor; he looked particular at her, and fhe look-
ed very much confufed and hurried, and went out of the Roem. Soon after, my Mafter
poured it out into the Cat’s Bafon, and fet it to be flled again 5 after this, when he
was not there, Mifs asked me, what he did with the Tea? 1 faid, he had not drank it,
but put it into the Cat’s Bafon in the Window ; then the locked a good deal confufed
and hurried. The nexe Day Mr. Blandy of Kingfon came about halt an Hour after Nine .
in the Morning, they walked into the Parlour, and left me to breakfalt by myfelf in
the Kitchens [ went to Chuich, when I returned, the Prifoner defired me o walk
with her Coulin into the Garden ; fhe delivered a Letter to me, and defired me to feal
and direct it as vfual, and put it into the Polt. el

Ceumeil, Had you ever direfted any Letter for her before !

Littleton. 1 have a great many ; I ufed to diredt her Lecters to Mr. Cranfoun.

He is fhewn a Letter,

Littleton. This is one. :

Ceuncil. Did you put it into the Poft 2 : -

Littleson, 1 did not 3 1 opened ir, having jult before heard Mr. Blandy was poifoned
by his own Daughter ; I tranfcribed it, and took it to Mr. Nortow’s the Apothecary ac
Henley, and after that I fhowed it, and read ir o Mr. Blandy. s 3 7

Conncil. What did he fay. v ;

Littleten, He faid very litle ; he (miled and faid, Poor Love-fick Girl ! WWhat wen't
a Girl do for a Man fle loves # (or to that Effect.) : :

Council, Have you ever feen her write ¢

Littleten. 1 have very often. -

Council. Look ar this Letter, is it her own Hand-writing ? ;

" Littlessn. 1 can’t tell 5 it is wrote worfe than fhe ufed to write, but it is the ame fhe

ViE M., 1
Eﬂmmm Do you remember Mr. Cranfloan coming there in dguid 17507 -

Littleton, 1do, It was cither the lawer End of Fuly, or the Beginning of Augui?,

Council. Did you hear any Talk about Mufic about that Time ?

Littleten. After he was gone, I heard the Prifoner fay, fhe heard Mufic in the |
Houle ; this I heard her fay very often, and that it denoted a Death in the Family 5
fometimes fhe faid, fhe believed it would be herfelf; at other Tirnes, it might be her
Farher, by reafon of his being fo much broken ; I heard her fay once, the thought fhe
heard her Mother. :

Council. Did the fay when that Death would happen ?

Littleton. She faid that Death would happen before Odeber, meaning the Death of
her Father, fecming to me.

Counctl. Have you heard her curfe her Father ?

Littleton. 1 have heard her feveral times, for a Rogue, a Villain, a toothlefs old

Do,
Council. Flow long was this before her Father's Death ?
Littleten. 1 can’c jultly tell that, buc | have heard her a great many Times within
two Maonths of his Death, and a great while before ; 1 had ufed to tell her he was
much broken latterly, and would not live long; fhe would fay, fhe thoughe fo too,
and that the Mufic portended his Death. z

Crefi
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Crafi- Examined.

Prifoner’s Cosncil. When you breakfatted with them in the Parlour, who was there
firft

Litileion. She was,

Prifoner’s Council. Did you fee the Tea made?

Lirtleten. No, Sir.

Prifimer’s Cosncil. Did fee it poured out ? L noon

Littleton, No 3 but he defired me to tafte the Tea; I did mine, and faid, I fancicd
his Mouth was out of Tafte. . ! i

Prijoner’s Coumeil. Did pot this Hurry you fay Mifs Blandy was in, arife from the
Difpleafure of her Father, becaule the Tea was not made to his Mind ?

- Littleten. 1 can’t fay that, or what it was from.

Prifoner’s Council. What became of that he throwed into the Cat’s Bafon ?

Liitleten, He left it there,

Robers Harman fworn,

I was Servant to Mr. Blandy at the Time of his Death; that Night he died, the
Prifoner alked me, where I thould live next? I faid, 1did not know ; fhe afked me
to go with her, I asked her where fhe was going ? fhe faid, It would be 500/, in my
Way, and no Hurt to me, if I would; 1 told her, I did not chufe to go.

Ceuncil. Did fhe tell you to what Place fhe was going ?

Harman. She did not.

Council. Did fhe want to go away at that Time of Night ?

Harman, Then immediately,

Crafs-Examined.

 Prifoner’s Council. Did the give any Reafon why fhe defired to go away ?
Harman. No fhe gave none.
Prifoner’s Council. How long had you lived there ?
Harman. A Twelvemonth
Prifoner’s Council. What has been her general Behaviour to her Father, during the
Time you was there ?
Harman. She behaved very well, fo far as ever I faw; and to all the Family,
King's Council. Did you ever hear her [wear about her Father ?
Harman. No 1 never did.

*

Mr. Richard Fifber fworn.

I was one of the Jury on'the Coroner’s Inqueft, that fat on Mr. Blandy’s Body on
Tburday 15 August, As1 was going up Street to go to Markee, 1 was told, Mifs Blandy
was gone over the Bridge. I went, and found her at the Sign of the 4ngel, on the
other Side the Bridge ; 1 told her, 1 was very forry for her Misfortune, and asked her
what fhe could think of herfelf to come from Home, and if fhe would be glad 1o
E Home again? She faid, *¢ Yes; but what mult I do to get there for the Mob?'" I

id, I would endeavour to ger a clofe Poft-Chaife and carry her Home ; I wene out
through the Mob and got one, and carried her Home; fhe afked me, whether the
was to go to Oxferd that Night or not? 1 faid, 1 believed pot; when I came to her
Facher's Houf, I delivered her up to the Conftables; when we were upon the En-
qiﬁ" before the Coroner, a Gentleman was afking for fome Letrers, which came in the

ime of Mr. Blandy’s Ilinefs 5 1 went to her Uncle Stevens to fee for them 5 fhe then
asked me again, what the Gentlemen intended to do with her, or how it would po?
I faid, 1 was afraid very hard, unlefs fhe could produce fome Letters to bring Mr.
Cranfioun to Juftice, She faid, * Dear Mr. Fifber, I am afraid I have burnt fome that
** would have brought him to Juftice ;™ fhe took a Key out of her Pocket, and faid, * Take
this Key, and fec if you can find fuch Letters in fuch a Drawer ;" there was one Mrs,
Minn flood by, I defired her ro go with the Key, which fhe did; but no Leters were
found there ; cthen Mils Blandy faid, My Honoar to bim will preve my Ruin.

Conncil. Whar did fhe mean by the Word bim ?

I Fyfber,
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Fifber. Mr. Cranffoun. When fhe found there was no Leuters of Confequence tobe
found. SRR y
_Mr_s.: L"F_ﬁﬂﬂm'. o |

was with my Hufband at Henley, at the Sign of the .ngel on the other Side the'
Br'LIdge . there v::rns Mifs Blandy. The firft Word [ heard Mr. Lane my ﬁu!bqnd ﬁy,
was it fhe was found guilty, the would fuffer according to Law ; upon which (he ftampt
her Foot upon the Ground and faid, O that d—wmw’d Fillain ! then pauled a lictle and
faid, but why fbould I blame bim ? for I'am'more to blame than be, for' I gave it bim,
and kneww the Comfequences - - : > i Gpisi 3t
Couneil. Did fhe fay, I knew, or [ know ? e A i A
Adrs. Lame. | really can't fay, Sir; for'I ‘did not expeét to be called for to be exa-
mined here, and will not take upon me ‘to fwear pofitively to a Word ; fhe was ina-
Sort of an Agony, in a very great Fright. : : v A

Mr. Lane fworn. s ot mivand

I went into the Room where the Prifoner was before my Wife che Day after Mr.
Blandy's Death 5 fhe arofe from hier Chair and met me, and looked hard at me, fhe
faid, Sir, I have not the Pleafure of knowing you, Said I, No, I am a Sirangerto
you 3 fhe faid, Sir, you look like 3 Gentleman, what do you think they will do with
me? Said I, you will be commiteed fo the County Goal and be tried ar the Allizes,
and if your Innocence appears, you'll be acqpitted ; if not, you will fuffer accordingly 5
fhe ftamped with her Foot and faid O that d—m’d Villain! but <vly do I blaine bim,
I am more to blame, Then Mr. Littleton came in, which took off my Attention from her,
that I did not hear fo as to give an. Account of the whole, agecthpndoy

(The Letter which Littleton opencd, read in Court.) Direted to the honourable
William Henry Cranfroun, Efg; ' &

Dear Wiy, o=t i
My Fatber is fo bad, that I bave only Time to tell you, that if yow do met bear e

foon again, donet be frightened ; Tam - better myfelf, and left any Acéident fhould bappen
to your Letiers take Care what you write, p S T
My fincere Compliments,

" I_awi ever Years.

The Prifoner*s Defence,
My Lords, . : :
IT is morally impoffible for me to lay down the Hard(hips T have received——I have
been afperied in my Charalter, In the firlt Place, it has been faid, that [ have
fpoke ill of my Father; that I have corfed bim and wifbed bim ar Hell ; which
is extremely falfe.— Somerimes little Famuily Affairs have happened, and he did
not fpeak to me fo kind as I could with.—I own 1 am pallionate, My Lords, and in
thofe Paflions fome haity Expreffions might have dropt: But grear Care has been
taken to recolleét every Word 1 have fpoken at different Times, and to apply them
to fuch particular Purpofes, as my Enemies knew would do me the greateft Injury.
Thefe are Hardthips, My Lords, extreme Hardfhips! fuch as You yourfelves muft allow
to be fo.—It was faid oo, My Lords, that I endeavoured to make my Efca Your
Lordfhips wil! judge, from the Dificultizs I laboured under. 1 had loft my Father—I was.
accufed of being his Murderer—I was not permitted to go near him—I was fprfaken by
my Friends—afironted by the Mob—infulted by my Servanis.— Al h I b t
have the Liberey to lillen ac the Door where he died, 1 was not allowed ir. y Keys
were taken from me, my Shoe-buckles and Garters too,—to prevent me from making
away with mylelfy as though I was the molt abandoned Creature.—What could I do,.
My Lords? 1 werily believe I muft have been out of my Senfes, When'I heard!
my Father was dcau?, and the Door-open, 1 ran out of che Houfe, and over the Bridge,
and had nothing on but an half Sack and Petticoar, withour-a Hoop,—my Petticoats
hanging about me,—The Mob gathered about me. —Was this a Condition, My Lords,
to maks my Efcape in ?——A good Woman beyond’the Bridge feeing me in this Di-
ftrefs, défired me ro walk in nll the Mob was difperfed ; the Town-Serjeant was there,
I bepged he weounld take me under his Proteftion to have me Home; the Worhan
faid, it was not proper, the Mob was very great, and that T had better ftaya
liw's,  When I came Home, they faid I ufediche Conftable ill. —— I was lock’d up
for Afteen Hours, with only an old Servant of the Family to attend me. — 1 was not
allowed a Maid for the common Decencics of my Sex, I was fent to Goal, and was in

H‘}Fﬁr
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Elizabeth Binfield. We had a lictle Quarrel fome Time before,
Kings Council. Did you ever declare you was to go away ?

Elizaberh Binfield, 1 did.
Mary Banks fworn,

I remember being in Mr, Blawdy’s Kitchen in Company with Auwse Fames,

Council, Who was in Company {

Mary Bawks. 1 don’t remember.

Council, Do you remember a Converlamion between Elizabeth Binfild and e

Fames ?
Mdary Banks. T don’t remember any Thing of it.
Council. Do you remember her alperfing Mils Blandy’s Charatler ?
Mary Banks, I don’t recolleft.
Comncsl. Did you hear her fay the fhould be glad to fee the black Bitch go up the Lad-

der to be hang’d ?

Mary Banks. She did fay, fhe fhoul be glad o fee the black Bitch go up the Ladder
to angd.

CMEF When was this?

Mary Banks, It was the Night Mr. Blandy was opened.

Council. Are you fure it was that Day?

Mary Banks. 1'm fure it was.

Cowncil. Where was Mils Blandy then?

Mary Banks. She was then in the Houfe.

Edward Herne [worn.,

1 formerly was a Servant in Mr. Blandy’s Family ; 1 went there cighteen Years ago,
and left them about twelve Years ago lalt Novemder, but have been frequently at the
Houfe ever fince ; that is, may be once, twice, thrice, or four Times in a Week,

Comncil, What was Mifs’s general Behaviour to her Father, and in the Family ?

Herne, She behaved, according to what I always obferved, as well to her Father and
the Family, as any Body could do, an affectionate, dutiful Daughrer.

Council. Did you fee her during the Time of Mr. Blandy’s Ilnefs ?

Herne, 1did. The firlk Time I went into the Room, (he was not able 'to fpeak to
me, nor [ to her, for ten Minutes,

Council, What was that owing to?

Herne. It was owing to the Greatnefs of her Grick.

Council. When was this ?

Herne, It was the 12th of Auguft at Night. ;
Council. How did her Father feem to be fatisfied with her Behaviour and Conduét ?

Herre, She was put into my Cuftody tha: Night ; when I went into the Room,
(upon hearing the Groans of her Father) fhe faid, at my Return, pray Ned, how does he

do?
Council, Did you ever hear her fpeak 11l of her Father ?

Herne. 1 never heard her fwear an Oath all the Time I have known her, or fpeak a
difrefpe€tful Word of her Father.

Crofs Examined,

King's Council, What are you?

Herne. 1 am Sexton of the Parith,

King"s Council, On what Night did Mr, Blandy die ?

Herne. On the Wedne/day Night ?

King's Council, How came you, as fhe was put under your Care, to let her get

away ?
Herne. 1 was gone to dig a Grave, and was fent for home ; they told me, fhe was

gone over the Bridge.

King’s Conneil. Had you any Talk with her about this Affair ?

Flerne. She declared to me, that Captain Cranffoun put fome Powder into Tea one
Morning for Mr. Blandy, and fhe turned herfelf about when he was flirring of it in the

Cup.
King’s Council, When did fhe tell you this ?

Herne, In Auguft, 1750.
Ring’s Council, Have ycu feen her fince (he has been in Oxford Gaol 2

Herne,
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his Tongue fwelled, his Throat excoriated and a little fwelled, his Lips dry, and Pim-
ples on them, Pimples on the Infide of his Noftrils, and his Eyes blood-fhot; (chat
next Morning he examined his Fundament, which he found Rrrounded with Uleers)
his Pulfe trembled and intermicced, his Breath was interruptzd and laboricus, his Com-
plexion yellowith, and he could not with the greateft Difficulty fwallow a Tea-fpoon-
ful of the thinnelt Liquid ; that he then afk’d him, if he had given Offence to any Per-
fon whatever, Flis Daughter the Prifoner was then prefent, and fhe made Anfiwer, that
her Father was at Peace with'all the World, and all the World with im. He then
alked, if he had been fubjeét to this kind of Complaint before: The Prifoner faid, thac
he was fubject to the Heart-burn and Cholic, and fhe fuppofed this would go off as it
ufed to do's rhat he then told them, that he fulpelted chat by fome means or other,
he had taken Poilfon: To which the Deccafed replied, he did not know but he
might, or Words to that Effeéts but the Prifoner faid it was impoffidle: He returned
to vilit him on Sumday Morning, and found him fomething relieved ; that he had
had fome Stools, but none bloody, which he took for a Spafm ; that afterwards,
Norten the Apothecary gave him fome Powder, which be fud had been taken ont
of Gruel, which the Deceafed had drank on Monday and Twefday; this Powder he
examined at Leilfure, and believes it to be white Arfenicy that the fame Morning a
Faper was put into his Hands, by one of the Maids, which fhe faid had been taken out
of the Fire, and which the faw Mifs Blandy throw in, there was a Supericription on
the Paper, Powder to clean the Pebbles 5 there was fo linle of it, that he can’t fay pofi-
tively what it was, but fulpects it to be Arfenic, for he put it on his Tongue, and it
felt like Arfenic, but fome burnt Paper mixed with it had difcoloured and foftencd it
He tells you, that on Mowday Morning the Deceafed was worle ; all the Sym 5 re-
turned, and he complained more of his Fundament. than before: He chen defired che
Affiftance of fome ikilful Phylician, becaufe he Jooked upon him to be in the utmoft
Dan%cr, and aprprehmdtd this Affair might come before a Courtof Judicature : He afked
the Decealed, 1 he really thought he was [:o'uibuc:[; to which he anfwered, that he really
believed fo, and thought he had taken it often, becaule his Teeth roced fafter than
ufual 5 he had frequent Prickings and Burnings in his Tongue and Throat, violen:
Heart-burn and frequent Stools, that carried it off again by unaccountable Fits of Vo=
mitting and Puryinrg 5 that he had had thele Symproms efpecially, after his Davghter
had received a Prefene of Scorch Pebbles from Mr, Cranffoun. He then alked the De-
ceafed who he fufpeéted had given the Poifon to him ; the Tears then ftood in his Eyes,
but he forced a Smile, and faid : A poor Love-fick Girly I forgive ber : I always theaghe
there was Mifchief in thof¢ curfed Scotch Pebbler.

Dr, Lewis came that Evening, and Mifs Blamdy was fent in‘o her Chamber, under a
Guard, and a!l Papers in her Pocker, and all Inftruments with which fhe might hure
herfelf, or any other Perfon, and her Keys, were taken from her, that nothing mighe
be fecreted 5 for it was not then publickly known that Mr, Blandy was poifoned, and
they thought themfclves accountable for her forth coming.  On Monday Night che De-
ceafed mended again, and grew better and worle, unaccountably, as long as he lived.
On Twefday Morning every Thing growing worle, he became exceflively ' weak,
rambled in his Difcourfz, and grew delirious, had cold clammy Swears, thort Cough, and
a desp Way of ferching his Breath ; and he obferved, upon thofe Occafions, that an ul-
cerous Macter iffued from his Fundament, In the Midlt of all chis, whenever hs re-
covercd his Senfes, he faid he was better, and feemed juim ferene, and tald him he
thought himfelf like a Man bit by a mad Dog, T fhowld be glad 1o drink, but I can'’t
fwwaliewr,  About Nooa his Specch faltered more than before ; he grew ghallly ; wasa
thecking Sight ; and had a very bad Night. On Hednefday Morning he recovered his
Senles a litele, and faid he would make his Will in a few Days, bot foon grew delirious
again, funk every Minute, and about Two in the Afternoon he died,

Tlie Doftor tells you he then thoughe, and il thinks, that he died of Poilon ; that he
had no Symptoms while he lived, nor after he was dead, but what are commaon in Peo-
ple who have taken white Arfenic.  He thenread fome Obfervations which he had made
on the Appesrances of his Body alter he was dead ; that his Back, and'the Parts
he lay on, were livid 3 the Fat on the Mufcles of his Belly was loofe in Texture,
and approached Fluidity ; the Mufcles of che Belly were pale and faccid ; the Cawl
yellower than natural ; the Side next the Stomach and Inteftines brownith ; the Heart
variegated with purple Spots ; there was no Water in the Pericardium ; the Lungs
refembled Bladders filled with Air, blotted with black, like Ink ; the Liver and
Spleen werg difcoloured ; and the former looked as if it had been boiled ;3 a Stone
was found in the Gallbladder 5 the Bile was very fuid, and of a dirty yellow Co-
lour, inclining to red; the Kidneys were ftained with fivid S s the Stomach and
Bowels were inflated, and looked as if they had been pincher‘:nd Blood {tagnated
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that fhe locked it up, and delivered the ame to Nertew on the: Sunday following :
She rells you, thar the Prifoner always behaved ducifully to her Faiher, as far as.
ever fhe (aw, when in bis Prefence ; thar fhe did not mention the Paper lefc with
hir to any Body, till it was ferched awdy on Swsday Morning, the rith of -
gu# : that fhe was not at Mr. Blendy's in that Time, and neitherfaw him, nor the
Frifoner ; but fhe was there onthe Sunday Afternoun, though fhe did net then. mention
any Thing of ir.

The nexe Witnefs is Swfan Guwnell, who tells you, that fhe carried the Pan of
Water Grucl“to Mrs. Mounteney’s, from Mr, Blawdy's, which had been made at his.
Houfe the Swaday Se*anight ‘before his Death, by berfelf ; that fhe fee it in the
common Pantry, where all the Family ufed to go, and obferved Nobedy to be,
bufy there afterwards; but on Mowday the Prifoner wld her fhe had been firsing:
her Papa™ Warer Gruel, and eating the Oarmeal ouc of the Bottom ;3 that fhe gave
him a half Pint Mog of it that Menday Nipghr, before he went to Bed; that fhe.
faw the Prifoner take the Tea Spoon that was in the Mug, ftir it about, and then,
put. her Fingers to the Spoon, and rub ‘em rogether, land then he drank fome,
Part of it; that on Tuegdey Morniag fhe did not fee him when fiek he came,
down Swairs, and the firlt Time the faw him was between Nine and Ten o'Clock,
when Mils Blandy and he were together 4 that he then faid he was not well, and
gong w lye down; that on Tuefday Evening Robert- Harman bid her warm her
Matler fome Water Gruel, for he was in Halte for Supper ; that fhe warmed him.
fome of the fame, which Mils Blandy carried into the Parlour, and fhe believes
he eat of ir, for there was about half lefe in the Morning ; that fhe -met him thac
Nighr, afrer the Water Gruel, as he was going up to Bed ; as foon as he got in-,
to the Room he cilled for a Bafon to reach, and feemed to be very fick, by
reaching feveral Times; the next Morning, about Six o'Clock, fhe carried him up,
his Phylic, when ‘he told her he hid had a pretry good Nighe, and was better 5
but he had vomited in the Night, as fhe judges by the Bafon, which fhe had
left elean, and was then about balf full 5 that on Hednefiay the Prifoner came in-
to the Kitctien, and faid to her, that as her Mafter taken Phyfic, he might
want Water Gruel, therefore fhe might give him the fame again, and not leave
her Work to make freth, as fhe was buly ironing ; to which anfwered, that it
was [Rale, if there was enough of it; that it would not take much Time, and the
would make freth, and accordingly did fo 3 thac the had the Evening before taken
up the Pun, and difliked the '[% e, and thought it flale, but was now willing
to talte it again; that fhe put the Pan to her Mouth, and drank fome of I.;,iing'
then obferved fome Whitenels at the Bottom, and told Beity Binfield, that fhe never
faw any Ourmeal Settlement fo white before 3 whereupon Betty Binfield looked at it,
and faid, Oatmeal this! I think it looks as white as Flour; She then rook it
out of Doors, where there was more Lighr, and putting her Finger to the
Howom of the Pan found it gritty, upon which fhe recolleéted, thar fhe had
hieard that Poifon was white and griccy, which made her fear this mighe be Poifon ;.
ihe therefore locked it up in a Clofet, and on Thurfday Morning carried it to Mos,
AMeuntney’s, where Mr. Norton faw it. She tells you, that about Six Wecks before
Mr. Blandy’s Death, fhe was not very well herfelf, and Mis Blandy then afked her
what was the Mateer with her, and what fhe had eat or drank ; to which f(he an{wered,
that (he koew not what ailed her, but the had taken nothing more than the relt of the
Family ; upon which the Prifoner faid to her, Sufan have you eat any Water-gruel # for
I am told it horts me, and may hurt you. To which the anfwered, Madam, it can’c
affeét me, for I have eat none, She then mentions a Converfation, that Berry Rinfeld
told ber the had with the Prifoner on the fame Subjeft ; but that you will hear from
Betty Binfield herfelf.  She then tells you, that on the Weduefday Morning, after fhe
had given her Mafter his Phyfick, the law Adwn Emmets the Chairwoman ; and faid to
her, Dame, you ufed 1o be fond of Warer gruel, here's a fine Mefs for you, which my
Mafter lefr laft Nighe ; and thereupon warmed i, and gave it her ; that the Woman
fiar down on a Bench in the Kicchen, and drank fome of e, but not all ; and faid the
Houle fmele of Phyfick, and every thing tafted of Phyflick, and {he mult go out and
reach before The could Anith ic; that the went out to the Walh-houli, as (he believes
that in about half an Hour fhe followed her, "and then found her in the Neceffary-houfs,
reaching, and, as fhe faid, purging ; that the old Woman ftaid there an Hour and an
half, during which Time fhe went frequently 10 her, and carried her Surfeic.water ;
fhe faid (he was ne bereer, and defired fome Far Water, upon thar the perfoaded her o
come into the Houfe 3 but fhe faid, the was not able without Help s that then fhe led

her ing and put her in a Chair by the Fire, where the Coughing and Reaching conti-
' 2 nued 3
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had found a Powder in the Pan ; upon which he faid to her, Def rhee bnow any thing
of this Powder, didl thee ever fee any of it? To which fhe anlwered Nos none buc
what fhe faw in the Water gruel; he then afked her, Dol busw where fbe bad this
Powder ar canfi gue/s # To which e replied, I can’t guefs any sbere, except from M.
Cranftoun ; my Reafen to fufpeft that is, Mifs Blandy bas lately bad Letters aftener than
wfual : Her Malter then faid, msw yor mention it, Iremember when be was at my Houf,
De talked of a particular Poifin they bad in bis Conntry : Ob ! ibat Villain, that ever be came
inta my Honfe. She likewile told him, that fhe had thewn the Powder to Mr. Noreow, bue
he could not teil what it was, as it was wet ; but whatever it was, it ought not to be there
her Mafter exprefied fome Surprize,and faid, My, Norton nof duow ! rbar's firange, a Per-
fon fo much nfed to Drugs 2 She told him Mr. Norton thought it would be proper for
him, (her Father; to frize her Pockets, with her Keys and Papers; to which he faid,
1 can't do ity T caw's foock ber fo much.— But canft not thee take out a Leller or two,
which fhe may think Jfbe bas dropped by Chance; the Witnefs told him, No, Sir, 1
have no Righr, fhe is your Daughter 3 you may do ir, and Nobody elfe. She tells
you, fhe can’t fay how long before this, it was, that Awe Emmest had been fick with
the Tea; that MG Blandy then fent her Whey and Broth, a Quart or three: Pints
at a Time, once a Day, or every other Day 5 that fhe herfelf once drank a Dith of
Tea on a Sundzy Morning, out of her Mafter's Dith, which was not well relithed,
and fhe thought Somebody had been taking Salts in that Cup; and this was abour
fix Weeks and three Days before her Matter’s Death 5 that fhe found no ill Effect from
it till afier Dinner that Day ; fhe had then a Hardnels at her Stomach, which fhe
apprehended was from esting plentifully of Beans ar Dinner s that afterwards fhe
feemed to have fome Indigeftion, and had a remarkable Trembling upon her 5 thae
fhe had no other Symptoms for three Cays, but afierwards, for about three D:za
more, fhe was troubled with a Reaching every Morning. She fays fhe ¢
Water Gruel twice; once on the Twefday, when the was mixing it for her Mafter,
and again on the Wedmefdsy, but found no remarkable Diforder all absut Two
o’Clock on the Wednefday Morning before her Malter’s Death, when fhe was fiized
with Convulfions. She fays that her Throat continued troublefome for fix or feven
Weeks after fhe had drank the Tea, and continued ill for three Weeks after her Maf~
ter’s Death ; fhe remembers once that the Prifoner had a large Box of Linen, and'
fome Pebbles from Mr. Cranfour, in the Spring, before her Mafter’s Death, and a.
fmall Box of Scotch Pebbles afterwards, about three Months before his Death 3 that
the Prifoner fhewed the, Pebbles to many of her Acquaintance, bur the Witnefs
never heard of Powder to clean "em ; fhe tells you, thar about a Year before his
Death, her Mafter had a Cold, but fhe don’t remember he was fo ill as to fend for.
the Apothecary 5 that he ufed to be equally comphining of the Gravel, Gour, and
Heart-burn for Twelve Years, knows nothing particular of any Complaine but the
Hleart-burn, and that he may have complained of all the Time fhe has lived in
the Houf, bur [he is not pofirive. )

She fays the Prifoner’s Behaviour to her Father, in general, feemed to be duci-
ful, but fhe ufed undutiful ExpreMons in her Paffions 3 that there had been no
Converfation between her Mafter and the Prifoner, before her atking Forgivenefs, but
a Meflage fent by him to  her, that he was willing to forgive her, if the would
bring that Villain to Juflice 5 in all he faid afrerwards, he feemed 10 fpeak of his
Daugheer, as if he believed her innocent of any Inteniion to hurt him, and looked
on Cranftoun as the firlk Mover and Contriver of all, and had faid, Poor mnforu-
aaie Girl! that ever fbe fhould e Ied away by fuch a Fillain to do fuck a Thing
fhe believes be thought his Daughter unacquainted with the Effiéls of the Pow-
der 3 that the Prifoner, doring his llnefs, kepe him Company, and direfted every
Thing for him as for herfelf ; the Prifoner knew her Father was ill on Menday and
Twefday Nighte, but won’t tike upen her to fay, that fhe koew what was the Caufz
of it, but fhe koew that the Chairwaman had been ill on the /Fednefday Moming,
before fhe told the Witnels that the old Water Gruel would ferve for her Father.

The next Witncls is Elizabeth Bisfield, who tells you, that the was a Servant to the
Deceafed almolt three Years before his Death; that he firlt complained of unufual
Pains and Prickings, abour a Fortnight before his Death 5 that fhe has often heard
the Prifoner mention Walkings, and Mufic, that fhe had heard in the Houfe ; chat
{he thoughe it to be her Mother, and three Quarters of a Year before her Malter's
Death, the Prifoner told her thae the Mufic prefaged his Death, and continued talk-
ing in the fame Way to the Time of it; that the has oftn hewd her fay, he
would die before Ofsber 3 that the Prifoner told her, that Mr, Cranfewr had in-

formed her, that a famous Woman, one Mrs. Morgar, who lived in Scetlond, or
I Londom,
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tho® fhe protefted that fhe thought it innocent when the gave it; for Mr. Cranffoun had
allured her that he vled to take it himElf, and called ic a Love Powder 3 thae [he hada
Letter from him, direfting her to give it in Gruel, as the had informed him it did not mix
in Tea ; that for ber own Part fle defired Life for no otber Parpofe thaw only 1o go thre’ a
Jevere Penance for ber Sins ; that on her being prefled by him to difcover all the knew relat-
ing to Cranfloun, her Anfwer was, that fe cwas fully confeions of ber cwon Guilt, and wonld,
not add Guilt to Guilt, for fbe lpoked on Cranftoun as ber Flufband, the’ ibe Ceremony bad not
paft beiwveen them. He tells you further, that he don't remember that fhe gave him any fa-:
tisfaltory Anfwer to any of the Queftions which he put to her, which he has repeated to.
you, and which are very material ones, but always perlilted that (he was intirely ignorant
of the Effeéts of the Powder, till the faw them on her Father; and often feid, pray God
fend it may not kill him, ateer he had told her and her Father too, the Danger of her
Father, and that he apprehended her to be undone: He then tells you he attended Sufan
Gumnell, who had the fame Symptoms with the Decealed, but in a lefs Degree ; he alfo
n::crndrd Anwe Emmere who had the {ame Symproms, and told her that fhe was
otfoned.
: Aice Emmett is then called, who is Daughter to .fune Emmett the old Chairwoman,
who gives you an Account that her Mother was Chairwoman at Vir. Blandy's in e
laft, in the Time of Hay-harvelt ; that fhe was then taken fick, was feized in the Night-
time with a Vomiting and Purging, aud this Witnefs went in the Morning o the Pri-
foner, by her Mather’s Delire, and acquainted her with the Condition fhe was in3 that
the Prifoner faid fhe was forry, and would fead her fomething to drink, which fhe did
in about an Hour or two afterwards, !
The nexe Witnefs is Mr. Littleton, who had been Clerk to the Decealed about two
Years, and tells you he came Home from his Father's in iFarwickbire, upon the gth
of Auguft Jalt ; that the next Morning the Priforer, her Father, and himfelf, were ac
Breaktalt together ; that chey ftayed tor the Deceafed fome Time 5 that when he came
he appeared to be ill and in great Agony ; that he had always a particular Cup to him=
felf 5 that he talted his Tea, and did not like ir, bur faid ic had a gritey bad 'lEaﬂ.'l.'. and
afk’d the Prifoner it fhe had not put too much of the black Seuff 10 it (meaning Bohea
Tea) the Prifoner faid it was as ufual 3 he then tafted ivagain, snd fid it had a 'bad Tafte,
and looked very particnlarly at her ; fhe feemed in a Hurry, and walk’d out of the Room 5
the Decealed then poured the Tea into the Car’s Bafon, and went away. Soon after the
Prifoner came into the Room again, when he told her that he thought the Deceafid was
very ill, for that he could not eat his Breakfalt ; on which fhe afked what he had done
with ir, and upon his acquainting her that it was poured into the. Cat’s Bafon, fhe
feemed a good deal confufed. That the next Dsg being Sunday Morning, Mr. Blax-
dy of Kingflon, carae to their Houfe, and went to Church along with him ; that afeer they
returned from Church, the Priloner defired chis Witnels to walk with her and M.
Blandy, in the Garden, when fhe put a Letter into his Hand, and bid him direct it
as ufual, which he underftood to be to Mr, Cramfoun, (having been ufed to direé
others before) to feal ir, and put it in the Polt. He tells you he had then heard fo moch
that he opened the Letter, tranfcribed it, carried it to Mr. Norton, and read: it to the
deceas’d, who only faid, Peor lsvefick Girl! what won't a Girl do for a Man fbe loves 2
This Letter he has now looked ar, tells you, that it is wrote worfe than ufual, there-
fore he can’t fwear whether *tis her Hand or no, but he can fwear 'iis the fame the
gave him ; the Letter itfelf has been read to you, and I will make no Remarks upon i,
He tells you that after Mr. Cranflonn was gone from Henley in Auzuf 1750, he hasof-
ten heard the Prifoner fay, that fhe heard Mulick which portended Death in the Family,
and fometimes thought it might be herfelf, fometimes her Father, becaule he was fo
much broken ; that he has heard her fay Death would happen before Offader 5 that he
has often heard her corfe her Father, damn him for a Regue and a teorblefs o/d Dog,
within two Months of his Death, and a grear while before ; that he has told her himielf,
that he thought Mr. Blandy feemed broken ; upon which fhe faid fhe thought (o teo,
and chat the Mufick portended his Death, '
Robere Harman is called next, who tells you that he was S=rvant to Mr. Blandy at the
Time of his Death 5 that the Night his Mafter died, the Prifoner afked him where he
fhould live next ; on which he told her he did not know, and fhe then afked him if he
would go away with her, and upon his faying he did not care to do fo, fhe told him no
Hurt would come to him, but it would be 500 4 in his way, and wanted him to goaway
then immediately. He fays che Prifoner behaved well 1o ber Father, and all the Family,
as far as he knows, and never heard her fwear about her Father,
The next Witnels is Richard Fifber, who was oneof the Jury on TInfpeétion of the
Body of the deceafed.  Ou Thurfday the '15th of ugnf, he was informed thae Mifs
3 Blawdy
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t:lls you this was on the Night that Mr. Blandy was opened, and that the Prifoner was
then in the Houfe. . .

Thefe two Witneffes are called to impeach the Credit of Elizalerh Binfield, as having
a Prejudice againil the Prifoner, but I fee no great Strefs to be laid on their Evidence, for
they manifeltly contradi&t one another, but donot falfify her in any oneThing (he has faid.

The nexe Winels that fhe calls is Edward Herne, who was a Servant o Mr. Blandy
Fighteen Years ago, and has left his Place about twelve Years, but he has been very
feldom without going three or four Days a-Week to his Houlfe ever fince s that the Pri-
foner's 1gnn:ml Behaviour to her Father and the Family was as well as any Body could do,
with Affection and Dury, as far as ever he faw ;5 that on the Manday Night before Mr.
Blandy died he went to the Houle, and that neither the Prifoner nor he could fpeak for
fome Minutes, which he atributed to her great Concern; thar fhe was put into his
Cuftody thac Night; that on hearing the Groans of her Father, he went in to him, at
her Defire, to enquire how he did; that he never heard her fwear, or fpeak dil-
refpectfully of her Father: He fays he was not in the way when the went over Henley-
Bridge, (being fent for to dig a Grave, he being the Sexton) that he has fesn her fince
her Cenfinement at Oxferd, and (he told him that Captain Cranfleun had before put fome
Powder in her Father's Tea; that fhe turned abour, and when fhe twrned again he was
ftirring it in ; that on a Report that Captain Cranfroun was taken, (he wrung her Hands,
and faid, Sbhe boped in Ged it wwas true, that be might be brought te Fujtice as well as ber-
JElfs that as fbe was do fuffer the Punifbment due to ber Crime, be might do fotoo 5 but at the
fame time fhe declared, that when Cranffeen put the Powder into the Tea, and (he herfelf
did fo afterwards, fhe knew no ill Effects of it, or faw any Harm from it, butif He were
taken, it would bring the whole to light, for fhe was innocent, and knew no more of its
being Poifon than any Perfon there,

Thomas Comdey, the next Witnefs, fays, that he has known the Prifoner twenty Years
and upwards; that he was intimate in the Family, and never faw any other, than the
Behaviour of a dutiful Daughter from her.

Themas Staverton, that he has known the Prifoner five or lix and twenty Years; thac
he has lived near the Family, and always thought that her Father and fhe were very
happy in each other. He has obferved that Mr. Blandy was declining in his Health; for
four Years or more he feemed to fhrink, and believes he was about Sixty-two Years of Age.

Mary Davis is the next Witnefls; fhe lives at the Angel by Henley-Bridge, and
remembers the Prifoner coming over, the Day her Father was opened ; that was
walking along, with a great Crowd after her ; that fhe went to her, and afked her what
was the Mater, and where fhe wasgoing ? The Prfoner faid fhe was going o walk
for the Air, for that they were going to open her Father, and that fhe could not bear the
Houfe ; the Mob followed fo clofe that fhe invited the Prifoner into her Houfe,
which fhe accepted, and was walking gently, and had not the Appearance of making
an Efcape,

Robert Stokes tells you he knows the lalt Witnels Mrs, Davis, and faw the Prifoner
with her, in her Houfe, the Day her Father was opened 5 that he was ordered by the
Mayor w0 take Care of the Prifoner, which fhe faid fhe was very glad of, becaule the
Mob was about; and he did not obferve any Inclination or Attempt whatfoever to make
an Efcape,

T his, Gentlemen, is the Subftance of the Evidence on both Sides, as nearly as 1 ean
recolleét it, I have not willfully omitted or miftated any Part of it bur, if 1 have, 1
hope the Gentlemen, who are of Council on either Side, will be fo kind as o fet me righe,

A very tragical Story it is, Gentlemen, that you have heard, and upon which, you
are now to form your Judgment, and give your Verdiét.

The Crime with which the Prifoner ftands charged, is of the moft heinous Nature
and blackelt Dye, attended with Confiderations that fhock human Nature, being not
only Murder, but Parricide-------The Murder of her own Father----but the more atro-
cious, the more flagrant the Crime is, the more clearly and fatsfaétorily yoa will ex-
pect that it fhould be made out to you.

Ln all Cafes of Murder, it is of Neceflity, that there fhould be Malice afore-
thought, which is the Effence of, and conftitutes the Offence: But thar Malics
may be either exprefs, or implied by the Law: Expref Malice muft arife from
the previous Aéts, or Declarations, of the Party offending; but implicd Malice
may arife from Numbers of Circumflances, relating either to the Nature of the
Atk itfelf, the Manoer of executing it, the Perfon killing, or the Perfon killed,
from which the Law will as cerrainly infer Malice, as where it is exprefs,

Poifon in particular, isin its Nature fo fecrer, and withal fo deliberate, that wherever
that is knowingly given, and Death enfues, the fo putting to Death can be no other
than wilful and malicious. 4 In





































































